AGENDA

REGULAR MEETING OF THE
ORANGE COUNTYWIDE OVERSIGHT BOARD

Tuesday, January 22, 2019, 8:30 AM
RANCHO SANTIAGO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

2323 N. Broadway, Board Room
Santa Ana, California 92706

HON. BRIAN PROBOLSKY

Chair

HON. STEVE JONES CHARLES BARFIELD

Vice Chair Board Member

STEVE FRANKS CHRIS GAARDER

Board Member Board Member

DEAN WEST, CPA HON. PHILLIP E. YARBROUGH

Board Member Board Member
Staff Counsel Clerk of the Board
Hon. Eric H. Woolery, CPA, Auditor-Controller Patrick Bobko Kathy Tavoularis

Chris Nguyen
Clare Venegas

The Orange Countywide Oversight Board welcomes you to this meeting. This agenda contains a brief general description of
each item to be considered. The Board encourages your participation. If you wish to speak on an item contained in the agenda,
please complete a Speaker Form identifying the item(s) and deposit it in the Speaker Form Return box located next to the Clerk.
If you wish to speak on a matter which does not appear on the agenda, you may do so during the Public Comment period at the
close of the meeting. Except as otherwise provided by law, no action shall be taken on any item not appearing in the agenda.
Speaker Forms are located next to the Speaker Form Return box. When addressing the Board, please state your name for the
record prior to providing your comments.

**|n compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, those requiring accommodation for this meeting should
notify the Clerk of the Board 72 hours prior to the meeting at (714) 834-2450**

All supporting documentation is available for public review online at http://ocauditor.com/ob/ or in person in
the office of the Auditor-Controller located in 12 Civic Center Plaza, Room 200, Santa Ana, California 92701
during regular business hours, 8:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday.

AGENDA — ORANGE COUNTYWIDE OVERSIGHT BOARD — TUESDAY, JANUARY 22, 2019 — PAGE 1



AGENDA

REGULAR MEETING OF THE
ORANGE COUNTYWIDE OVERSIGHT BOARD

8:30 A.M.
1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance
2. Approval of the Minutes from September 18, 2018

3. Adopt Resolution Regarding Request by Successor Agency for Approval of Amendment to Cooperative
Agreement
a. City of Orange

4. Adopt Resolution Regarding Request by Successor Agency for Transfer of Property
a. City of Orange

5. Adopt Resolutions Regarding Requests by Successor Agencies for Annual Recognized Obligation Payment
Schedule (ROPS) and Administrative Budget
County of Orange
Costa Mesa
Cypress
Fountain Valley
Fullerton
Garden Grove
Irvine
La Palma
Mission Viejo
City of Orange
San Juan Capistrano
Seal Beach
. Stanton
Westminster

SITmARTTSQ@oP o0 o

BOARD COMMENTS & ADJOURNMENT:

PUBLIC COMMENTS:

At this time members of the public may address the Board on any matter not on the agenda but within the
jurisdiction of the Board. The Board may limit the length of time each individual may have to address the Board.

STAFF COMMENTS:

BOARD COMMENTS:

ADJOURNMENT:

NEXT MEETING:

Regular Meeting January 29, 2019, 8:30 AM

AGENDA — ORANGE COUNTYWIDE OVERSIGHT BOARD — TUESDAY, JANUARY 22, 2019 — PAGE 2



MINUTES

REGULAR MEETING OF THE
ORANGE COUNTYWIDE OVERSIGHT BOARD

September 18, 2018, 9:30 a.m.
1. CALL TO ORDER
The regular meeting of the Orange Countywide Oversight Board was called to order at

9:30 a.m. on September 18, 2018 at 550 South Main Street, Room 7, Orange, California by
Chairman Brian Probolsky, presiding officer.

Present: 7 Chairman: Brian Probolsky
Vice Chairman: Steve Jones
Board Member: Charles Barfield
Board Member: Steve Franks
Board Member: Chris Gaarder
Board Member: Dean West
Board Member: Phillip E. Yarbrough
Absent: None

Also present were Chris Nguyen, Staff to the Oversight Board; Anthony Kuo, Clerk of
the Oversight Board, and Clare Venegas, Consultant to the Oversight Board

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Led by Chairman Probolsky.
3. OATH OF OFFICE

The Honorable Eric H. Woolery, Orange County Auditor-Controller, administered the
82}:16823(.)ffice for The Honorable Phillip E. Yarbrough to represent the California Community

Board Member Yarbrough suggested to Chairman Probolsky moving Public Comment up
on the agenda in advance of the presentations for other agenda items.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

Chairman Probolsky asked if any Board Members objected, and seeing none, opened
Public Comment. No public comments were made.

4, APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM AUGUST 7, 2018



Moved by Board Member Barfield, seconded by Board Member Gaarder.
5. ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION FOR REGULAR 2019 MEETING SCHEDULE

Staff member Nguyen presented a resolution setting forth the regular meeting schedule
for 2019 (January 22, January 29, April 30, July 30, September 24) and location (the Rancho
Santiago Community College District board room in Santa Ana). He noted some meeting dates
such as the January meetings are anticipated to be lengthier and some dates may be ultimately
cancelled depending on number of requests for agenda items by Successor Agencies. He noted
that the resolution also delegated to staff the ability to move the September 24 regular meeting to
September 17, provided notice is given no later than the April 30 regular meeting.

Vice Chairman Jones requested that the meeting notices be sent to Board Members via
electronic calendar invitations. Board Member Yarbrough requested staff avoid major religious
holidays like Yom Kippur when scheduling future meetings. Chairman Probolsky requested an
earlier start time, to which the Board agreed on 8:30 a.m. as the start time for all future meetings.

ACTION:  The resolution was moved by Board Member Barfield, seconded by Board
Member Yarbrough, unanimously approved.

6. PRESENTATION ON THE BOARD’S DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Staff member Nguyen provided a presentation of the Oversight Board’s duties and
responsibilities, citing the relevant language from Health and Safety Code Section 34179, and
oversight relationship over the Successor Agencies in Orange County. He also noted the items
that require Oversight Board approval including Recognized Obligation Payment Schedules
(ROPS) and amendments; Last and Final ROPS; Issuance of bonds or other indebtedness;
Pledges or agreements for the pledge of property tax revenue; Establishment of new repayment
terms for outstanding loans; Compensation agreements; Property dispositions; and Final
resolution of dissolution for the Successor Agency. Nguyen also noted Health and Safety Code
does not allow Oversight Board members to be compensated or reimbursed for expenses.

Board Member Franks asked whether they would be able to get information about all of
the Successor Agencies and the status of their obligations. Staff member Nguyen noted that the
staff, along with the assistance of Curt Pringle & Associates, the consultant, are working on a
“snapshot survey” for Successor Agencies to complete and will present the findings at a future
meeting. Board Member Franks also inquired about the Oversight Board’s administrative budget
and how funds are allocated and drawn upon. Staff member Nguyen replied that only actual
administrative and set-up costs are drawn upon as needed from the Redevelopment Property Tax
Trust Fund (RPTTF), and such allocations do not require Board action.

7. ADOPT RESOLUTION AT THE REQUEST OF SEAL BEACH SUCCESSOR
AGENCY FOR APPOINTMENT OF NEW OVERSIGHT AGENT AND PROGRAM
ADMINISTRATOR



Vikki Beatley, the City of Seal Beach’s Director of Finance and City Treasurer, presented
the resolution requesting the Oversight Board authorize the Successor Agency’s execution and
delivery of Amendment No. 2 to appoint a successor Oversight Agent and Program
Administrator for Seal Beach Shores, a mobile home park project, per the bond issuance
documents.

ACTION:  The resolution was moved by Board Member Yarborough, seconded by
Board Member Barfield, unanimously approved.

8. ADOPT RESOLUTION AT THE REQUEST OF GARDEN GROVE SUCCESSOR
AGENCY FOR TRANSFER OF PROPERTY

Vice Chairman Jones recused himself on this item and left the Board room.

Lisa Kim, the City of Garden Grove’s Community and Economic Development Director,
discussed the agency’s request to approve the transfer of certain real property to New Age
Brookhurst, LLC in accordance with the Long Range Property Management Plan.

Board Members Franks and Yarborough inquired about the sale proceeds and market
valuation. Board Member West asked about the property tax distribution.

ACTION:  Moved by Board Member Yarbrough, seconded by Board Member
Gaarder, unanimously approved.

9.  ADOPT RESOLUTIONS REGARDING REQUESTS BY SUCCESSOR
AGENCIES FOR AMENDED RECOGNIZED OBLIGATION PAYMENT SCHEDULE
(ROPS)

At 10:06 a.m., Vice Chairman Jones returned to the dais. Jones requested staff provide a
legal opinion on recusals of Successor Agencies where he is also a sitting board member. Staff
member Nguyen noted that staff will have an update later in the agenda regarding Board counsel.

a. Anaheim: Staff member Nguyen introduced the item. City of Anaheim Community and
Economic Development Director John Woodhead presented a resolution approving
amendment to FY 2018-19 ROPS for the Anaheim Successor Agency, and explained the
background. The amendment requests RPTTF funds to pay a City loan obligation for
construction of the Packing House alleyway. Department of Finance denied the request
for funding, and they are awaiting a trial court decision that is consistent with the
appellate court.

Board Member Franks asked if the Oversight Board’s action make us a party to
litigation. Board Member West asked about why the Department of Finance denied the
request.

Staff member Nguyen noted that the first paragraph from resolution was



mistakenly placed there and should be deleted.

ACTION: Motion by Board Member Yarbrough, seconded by Vice Chairman
Jones, unanimously approved, with an amendment to delete the erroneous first paragraph.

Garden Grove — 10:13 a.m. Vice Chairman Jones recused himself from this item. Staff
member Nguyen explained the request to approve the Garden Grove’s Amended ROPS
18-19 B. The funds should have come from FY 17-18 instead of FY 18-19.

ACTION: Motion by Board Member Barfield, seconded by Board Member
Yarbrough, unanimously approved.

At 10:16 a.m., Vice Chairman Jones returned to dais.

Mission Viejo -- Staff member Nguyen noted this item is to approve the Amended ROPS
18-19B, noting that Mission Viejo’s increase of $33,000 is the result of implementing the
settlement agreement resulting from litigation between the State, the County, and City.
Nguyen noted Mission Viejo staff were in attendance to answer any questions.

Board Member Gaarder clarified that this reflects a change in how the expenses
are allocated between the parties. Nguyen said that ROPS only pertains to money coming
from the RPTTF.

ACTION: Motion by Board Member Gaarder, seconded by Board Member
Barfield, unanimously approved.

. San Juan Capistrano — Staff member Nguyen introduced the San Juan Capistrano
Successor Agency request to approve the Amended ROPS 18-19B for the second half of
Fiscal Year 2018-19 to ensure that the Successor Agency complies with its bond
covenants.

Vanessa Ludband, counsel to the San Juan Capistrano Successor Agency,
explained the amended ROPS adjusts the timing of tax deposits in order to fully comply
with the agreements. Board Member Franks asked whether this timing issue may occur
with other agencies.

ACTION: Motion by Board Member Yarbrough, seconded by Vice Chairman
Jones, unanimously approved.

. Santa Ana -- Staff member Nguyen introduced the request by the Santa Ana Successor
Agency to approve a resolution approving an amendment to the FY 2018-19 ROPS to
reflect payment of an outstanding obligation that is anticipated in January 2019.

ACTION:  Motion by Board Member Gaarder, seconded by Board Member
Yarbrough, unanimously approved.



BOARD COMMENTS

Chairman Probolsky invited Board Members to provide additional comments. Board
Member Yarbrough noted he would be happy to address any issues or concerns that may arise
related to the use of the Rancho Santiago Community College District board facilities for future
Oversight Board meetings.

Chairman Probolsky invited staff to provide any additional comments.
STAFF COMMENTS

Staff member Nguyen provided an update regarding hiring Board Counsel. He noted that
the Auditor-Controller’s office will soon launch a Request for Proposals to retain a primary
counsel, but he anticipates there may be a lot of law firms that are conflicted from participating.
The goal is to have counsel in place by the January meeting. Chairman Probolsky noted he
would like to see the RFP before it goes out, and invited another Board Member to participate in
a subcommittee. Board Member Barfield agreed to participate in that process. Nguyen noted that
although the Countywide Oversight Board is a legally separate entity, staff will be following
County’s procurement process for counsel selection, rather than inventing an entirely new
procurement process.

ADJOURNMENT

Chairman Probolsky adjourned the meeting at 10:36 a.m. and noted the next regular
meeting of the Countywide Oversight Board is scheduled for January 22, 2019.

BRIAN PROBOLSKY
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTYWIDE OVERSIGHT BOARD

KATHY TAVOULARIS
CLERK OF THE BOARD

DATE



Orange Countywide Oversight Board

Date: 1/22/2019 Agenda Item No. 3A
From: Successor Agency to the Orange Redevelopment Agency
Subject: Amendment No. 2 to Cooperative Agreement No. C-9-0901 between the

Successor Agency to the Orange Redevelopment Agency, the City of Orange and
the Orange County Transportation Authority for expansion of parking capacity at
the Orange Santa Fe Depot

Recommended Action:

Approve the executed agreement and submission to the Department of Finance for final approval.

Cooperative Agreement No. C-9-0901 was executed May 3, 2010, and provided for reimbursement
by the Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA) of the initial design costs for the
Metrolink Parking Structure project, including project management for the design phase,
preparation of conceptual designs, community outreach, preparation of plans and specifications,
and architect project support costs through the completion of the construction phase. OCTA
reimburses the City 73% of project related costs up to $1,650,000. The remaining portion of
project related costs was to be borne by the Orange Redevelopment Agency. As such, the
Successor Agency to the Orange Redevelopment Agency (SAORA) is a party to the cooperative
agreement. All obligations for SAORA have been drawn down through the ROPS process, so no
further funding will be sought through future ROPS. However, in order for the agreement to be
considered fully executed, approval by the Oversight Board and Department of Finance is
necessary.

The purpose of the contract amendment is to extend the agreement through December 31, 2020 to
allow sufficient time to complete the scope of work and submit for reimbursement by OCTA.
There are not changes to the amount or other terms of the original agreement.

Impact on Taxing Entities:

None.

Attachments:

Attachment 1 — Proposed Oversight Board Resolution to Approve Amendment No. 2 to
Cooperative Agreement No. C-9-0901



Resolution No. 19-

A RESOLUTION OF THE ORANGE COUNTYWIDE OVERSIGHT BOARD
WITH OVERSIGHT OF THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE ORANGE
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO A
COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OF ORANGE AND THE
ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AGENCY

WHEREAS, the Orange Redevelopment Agency (the “Former Agency”) entered into a
cooperative agreement with the City of Orange (the “City”’) and the Orange County Transportation
Authority (“OCTA”) on May 3, 2010, to provide for reimbursement of the initial design costs for
the Metrolink Parking Structure project (the “Structure”); and

WHEREAS, the Successor Agency to the Orange Redevelopment Agency (the “Successor
Agency”) is tasked with winding down the Former Agency’s affairs; and

WHEREAS, the original cooperative agreement has expired prior to the completion of the
Structure; and

WHEREAS, the Successor Agency Board of Directors, along with the City and OCTA,
have approved an amendment to the cooperative agreement to extend the agreement through
December 31, 2020; and

WHEREAS, in order for the amendment to be fully executed it is necessary for the
Countywide Oversight Board and the State of California Department of Finance to approve the
agreement; and

WHEREAS, the approval of the amendment has no fiscal impact on the taxing entities as
it does not change the total cost of the agreement and all costs associated with the cooperative
agreement have been drown through the Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule process;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE ORANGE COUNTYWIDE
OVERSIGHT BOARD does hereby resolve as follows:

Section 1. The above recitals are true and correct and are a substantive part of this
Resolution.

Section 2. The Oversight Board hereby approves the cooperative agreement
amendment, substantially in the form attached as Exhibit A.

Section 3. The members of this Oversight Board and the staff of the Successor Agency
are hereby authorized, jointly and severally, to do all things which they may deem necessary or
proper to effectuate the purposes of this Resolution.



EXHIBIT A

AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT NO. C-9-0901



~N 0O o A 0w N

o o

10
11
12
13
14
156
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

AGR-554%Q L

AMENDMENT NO. 2TO
AGREEMENT NO. C-9-0901
BETWEEN
ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
AND
CITY OF ORANGE

AND
SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE ORANGE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

FOR
EXPANSION OF PARKING CAPACITY AT ORANGE SANTA FE DEPOT

THIS AMENDMENT NO. 2 is effective this ié\- day of jzm\mr\/ 2018, by and
between the Orange County Transportation Authority, 550 South Main Street, P.O.I Box 14184, Orange,
California 92863-1584, a public corporation of the State of California (hereinafter referred to as
‘AUTHORITY") and the City of Orange, 300 Chapman, Orange, California 92866, a municipal
corporation duly organized and existing under the constitution and laws of the State of California
(hereinafter referred to as “CITY"); and the Successor Agency to the Orange Redevelopment Agency, a
public body, corporate and politic having its address for purpose of the Agreement at 300 East Chapman
Avenue, Orange, CA. 92866 (hereinafter referred to as the “SUCCESSOR AGENCY?).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, AUTHORITY, CITY and ORANGE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY entered into
Cooperative Agreement No. C-8-0901, dated May 3, 2010, as last changed by Amendment No. 1 dated
December 9, 2015, to define roles and responsibilities for the design of two parking structures at the
Orange Transportation Center, (hereinafter referred to as “OTC") also known as the Orange Santa Fe
Depot, which is located at 194 North Atchison Street in the City of Orange, California; and

WHEREAS, AUTHORITY, CITY, and SUCCESSOR AGENCY agree to extend the term of the

Agreement for an additional thirty six (36) months with no increase to the maximum obligation.

Page 1 of 5
L:\Camm\CLERICAL\WORDPROC\AGREE\AMEND\AM290901.doc




O O 00 N O O »~Ar W N -

N N N N N N - a A A A A A e A
CD(I.\J'I)-')(AJN—‘O(OCD\]O)U'IA@N—‘

AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO
AGREEMENT NO. C-9-0901

NOW, THEREFORE, it is mutually understood and agreed by the AUTHORITY, CITY, and
SUCCESSOR AGENCY that Agreement No. C-9-0901 is hereby amended in the following particulars
only:

1. Amend ARTICLE 5. TERM OF AGREEMENT, page 4 of 10, line 22, as last changed by

Amendment No. 1 dated December 9, 2015 to delete “December 31, 2017" as the expiration date of the
Agreement and in lieu thereof insert “December 31, 2020.”

/

/

/

Page 2 of 5
L\Camm\CLERICALWORDPROC\AGREE\AMEND\AM290801.doc




© 0o N O O A W N -

N NN N = e a  a  »  aa oA A Ao
N = O © 0o ~N O ;o Hh W N =~ o

N
w

%
2R R

N
(o))

AMENDMENT NO. 2TO
AGREEMENT NO. C-9-0901

The balance of Agreement No. C-9-0901 remains unchanged.
This Amendment No. 2 is effective January 1, 2018.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Amendment No. 2 to Agreement

No. C-9-0901 to be executed on the date first above written.

CITY OF ORANGE ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
By: By: -]

B : e,

Rick Otto Meena Katakia

City Manager Manager, Capital Projects
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:
By Cley By: ; (

Mary E urphy James M. Donich

City Clerk General Counsel
APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By.. W/ é/—%

Wayne W. Winthers
City Attorney

Date: 8:/ ‘5!’ 8

Page 3 of 5
LACamm\CLERICAL\WWORDPROC\AGREE\AMEND\AM290901.doc




O 00 N O O A W N -

N NN N 2 a a a A A ea A A oA

AMENDMENT NO. 2TO
AGREEMENT NO. C-9-0901

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Amendment No. 2 to Cooperative
Agreement No. C-9-0901 to be executed on the date first above written.

SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE ORANGE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Téresa E. Smith
Chairperson

ATTEST:

By: ,M {U&”J{/ C\/\\cg C\cfb

Mary E. Murphy
Successor Agency Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By: /W/}_

Wayne W. Winthers
Successor Agency General Counsel

Date: 8/)5’{@

Page 4 of 5
L\Camm\CLERICALWORDPROC\AGREE\VAMEND\AM290901.doc




Orange Countywide Oversight Board

Date: 1/22/2019 Agenda Item No. 4A

From: Successor Agency to the Orange Redevelopment Agency

Subject: Resolution of the Countywide Oversight Board Directing the Transfer of a
Governmental Use Property (APN 386-463-12) to the City of Orange and Taking
Related Actions

Recommended Action:

Adopt resolution to direct the Successor Agency of the Orange Redevelopment Agency (the
“Successor Agency”) the transfer of a governmental use property (APN 386-463-12) to the City
of Orange and taking related actions.

As part of the wind-down of the former Orange Redevelopment Agency’s affairs, the Successor
Agency transferred a number of properties to the City of Orange for governmental use with the
prior approval of the Successor Agency’s former oversight board and the State Department of
Finance (the “DOF”).

The former oversight board adopted Resolution No. OB-0039. The Resolution No. OB-0039 was
intended to, among other things, allow the transfer of the West Chapman Parking Lot to the City
of Orange. The DOF approved such transfer on November 5, 2013. The Parking Lot, consisting
of several parcels, is located west of the train tracks at the Orange Metrolink Transportation Center.
Successor Agency Staff recently discovered that one of the Parking Lot parcels was inadvertently
left out of Resolution No. OB-0039.

This Resolution will authorize the Successor Agency’s transfer of the remaining West Chapman
Parking Lot parcel to the City.

Impact on Taxing Entities:

None.

Attachments:

Attachment 1 — Proposed Oversight Board Resolution (with Exhibit A -- form of Quitclaim Deed)

Attachment 2 — Successor Agency Governing Board Resolution No. SAROA-31 approving the
transfer

Attachment 3 — Resolution No. OB-0039, adopted by the Successor Agency Oversight Board on
July 24, 2013

Attachment 4 — State Department of Finance Letter, dated November 5, 2013, approving
Resolution No. OB-0039

Attachment 5 — Parcel map and photo



RESOLUTION NO. 19-

A RESOLUTION OF THE ORANGE COUNTYWIDE OVERSIGHT BOARD
WITH OVERSIGHT OF THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE ORANGE
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY DIRECTING THE TRANSFER OF A
GOVERNMENTAL USE PROPERTY (APN 386-463-12) TO THE CITY OF
ORANGE AND TAKING RELATED ACTIONS

WHEREAS, pursuant to AB X1 26 (enacted in June 2011) and the California Supreme
Court’s decision in California Redevelopment Association, et al. v. Ana Matosantos, et al., 53 Cal.
4th 231 (2011), the Orange Redevelopment Agency (the “Former Agency”) was dissolved as of
February 1, 2012; the Successor Agency to the Orange Redevelopment Agency (the “Successor
Agency”) was constituted as the successor to the Former Agency; and

WHEREAS, the Successor Agency is tasked with winding down the Former Agency’s
affairs; and

WHEREAS, Health and Safety Code (“HSC”) Section 34175(b), all real properties of the
Former Agency transferred to the control of the Successor Agency by operation of law; and

WHEREAS, HSC Section 34181(a) sets forth certain requirements for the oversight board
with jurisdiction over the Successor Agency to direct the Successor Agency to dispose of the
Former Agency’s properties, but provides that the oversight board may direct the Successor
Agency to transfer ownership of a property that was constructed and used for a governmental
purpose (including, among others, parks and public parking facilities facilities) to the appropriate
public jurisdiction; and

WHEREAS, recently, it has come to the Successor Agency’s attention that the Former
Agency (as succeeded by the Successor Agency) remains to be the fee owner of record of a
property located on West Chapman Avenue (APN 386-463-12) (the “Property”); and

WHEREAS, the Property consists of a small grassy park space, which is an appendage to
the parking lot of the Metrolink Station (the “West Chapman Parking Lot); and

WHEREAS, the former oversight board of the Successor Agency adopted Resolution No.
OB-0039, approving the transfer of multiple governmental use properties, including the West
Chapman Parking Lot parcels (and the State Department of Finance, by its letter dated November
5, 2013, approved the transfer of the West Chapman Parking Lot parcels); however, at that time,
the Property was inadvertently left out of No. OB-0039; and

WHEREAS, in furtherance of its wind-down of the Former Agency’s affairs, the Successor
Agency desires to transfer the Property to the City pursuant to HSC Section 34181(a);

WHEREAS, pursuant to HSC Section 34179(j), commencing on and after July 1, 2018,
the Orange Countywide Oversight Board (the “Oversight Board”) has jurisdiction over the
Successor Agency; and

12817-0001\2181676v2.doc



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE ORANGE COUNTYWIDE
OVERSIGHT BOARD does hereby resolve as follows:

Section 1. The above recitals are true and correct and are a substantive part of this Resolution.

Section 2. The Oversight Board hereby authorizes and directs the Successor Agency to
transfer the Property to the City and authorizes the Successor Agency to execute and deliver a
quitclaim deed (the “Deed”), substantially in the form attached as Exhibit A, for such transfer.

Section 3. The members of this Oversight Board and the staff of the Successor Agency are

hereby authorized, jointly and severally, to do all things which they may deem necessary or proper
to effectuate the purposes of this Resolution.

12817-0001\2181676v2.doc



EXHIBIT A

FORM OF QUITCLAIM DEED

12817-0001\2181676v2.doc



RECORDING REQUESTED BY
AND WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO:

City of Orange

300 E. Chapman Avenue
Orange, California 92866
Attention: City Clerk

APN(s): 386-463-12 [SPACE ABOVE FOR RECORDER’S USE ONLY]

This transfer is exempt from Documentary Transfer Tax pursuant to Revenue & Taxation
Code Section 11922, and exempt from Recording Fees pursuant to California Government Code
Section 27383.

QUITCLAIM DEED

THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE ORANGE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY does
hereby REMISE, RELEASE AND FOREVER QUITCLAIM to the CITY OF ORANGE, a
municipal corporation, all of the Successor Agency’s right, title and interest in, under and to that
certain real properties (and all improvements and fixtures located thereon) located in the County
of Orange, State of California, described as:

The east 56.00 feet of Lot 1, in Block C of the Spotts Villa Tract, as per map
recorded in book 3, page 45 of Miscellaneous Maps, in the office the County
Recorder of Orange County, California.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Quitclaim Deed as of the
date set forth below.

Dated: , 2019
SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE
ORANGE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY Attest:
By:
Rick Otto Pamela Coleman

Executive Director Agency Clerk

12817-0001\2181676v2.doc



A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the
identity of the individual who signed the document to which this certificate is
attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document.

State of California )
County of Orange )

On , before me, ,

(insert name and title of the officer)
Notary Public, personally appeared , Who proved to me on
the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the
within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their
authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or
the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the
foregoing paragraph is true and correct.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

Signature (Seal)

12817-0001\2181676v2.doc



CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE
(California Government Code Section 27281)

This is to certify that the interest in real property conveyed to the City of Orange (the
“City”) by that certain Quitclaim Deed, dated , 2019, executed by the Successor
Agency to the Orange Redevelopment Agency is hereby accepted by the undersigned officer on
behalf of the City pursuant to the authority conferred by Resolution No. 11125 of the City Council
of the City, adopted on December 11, 2018, and the City consents to the recordation thereof by its
duly authorized officer.

Dated: , 2019

CITY OF ORANGE

By:

Mark A. Murphy
Mayor

12817-0001\2181676v2.doc



RESOLUTION NO. SAORA-031

A RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF

. THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE ORANGE
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY APPROVING THE
TRANSFER OF A GOVERNMENTAL USE
PROPERTY (APN 386-463-12) TO THE CITY OF
ORANGE AND TAKING RELATED ACTIONS.

WHEREAS, pursuant to AB X1 26 (enacted in June 2011) and the California Supreme
Court’s decision in California Redevelopment Association, et al. v. Ana Matosantos, et al., 53 Cal.
4th 231 (2011), the Orange Redevelopment Agency (the “Former Agency”) was dissolved as of
February 1, 2012; the Successor Agency to the Orange Redevelopment Agency (the “Successor
Agency”) was constituted as the successor to the Former Agency; and an Oversight Board to the
Successor Agency (the “Oversight Board™) was established; and

WHEREAS, the Successor Agency is tasked with winding down the Former Agency’s
affairs; and

WHEREAS, Section 34175(b) of Health and Safety Code (“HSC”), all real properties of
the Former Agency transferred to the control of the Successor Agency by operation of law; and

WHEREAS, HSC Section 34181(a) sets forth certain requirements for the Oversight
Board to direct the Successor Agency to dispose of the Former Agency’s properties, but provides
that the Oversight Board may direct the Successor Agency to transfer ownership of a property that
was constructed and used for a governmental purpose (including, among others, parks and public
parking facilities) to the appropriate public jurisdiction; and

WHEREAS, recently, it has come to the Successor Agency’s attention that the Former
Agency (as succeeded by the Successor Agency) remains to be the fee owner of record of a
property located on West Chapman Avenue (APN 386-463-12) (the “Property”); and

WHEREAS, the Property consists of a small grassy park space, which is an appendage to
the parking lot of the Metrolink Station (the “West Chapman Parking Lot”); and

WHEREAS, the Oversight Board adopted Resolution No. OB-0039, approving the
transfer of multiple governmental use properties, including the West Chapman Parking Lot parcels
(and the State Department of Finance, by its letter dated November 5, 2013 approved Resolution
No. OB-0039); however, at that time, the Property was inadvertently left out of No. OB-0039; and

WHEREAS, in furtherance of its wind-down of the Former Agency’s affairs, the
Successor Agency desires to transfer the Property to the City pursuant to HSC Section 34181(a);
and

WHEREAS, the Oversight Board is expected to consider the adoption of a resolution
(“Oversight Board Resolution™) directing the transfer of the Property to the City.



NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ORANGE,
ACTING AS THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE
ORANGE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY, HEREBY FINDS, DETERMINES,
RESOLVES, AND ORDERS AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The above recitals are true and correct and are a substantive part of this
Resolution.

Section 2. The transfer of the Property to the City is hereby authorized and approved.
Each of the Chair, the Vice Chair and the Executive Director of the Successor Agency
(collectively, the “Authorized Officers,” each being an “Authorized Officer”), acting
individually, is hereby authorized to execute and deliver, for and in the name of the Successor
Agency, a quitclaim deed (the “Deed”), substantially in the form attached as Attachment A, to
effect and evidence such transfer; provided, that such execution shall occur after the Oversight
Board Resolution takes effect.

Section 3. The Authorized Officers and other officers and Staff members of the
Successor Agency are hereby authorized, jointly and severally, to do all things (including but not
limited to the execution of any certificates or other instruments) which they may deem necessary
or proper to effectuate the purposes of the Deed and this Resolution, and any such actions
previously taken are hereby ratified and confirmed.

Section 4. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption.

ADOPTED this 11th day of December 2018.

/Wb b Mol

Mark A. Murphy
Chairperson of the Successor Agenly

ATTEST:

W A s et

Pamela Colgman
Clerk of the’Successor Agency
to the Orange Redevelopment Agency

Resolution No. SAORA-031 -2-
12817-0001\2181674v1.doc



STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
COUNTY OF ORANGE )
CITY OF ORANGE )

I, Pamela Coleman, Clerk of the Successor Agency, City of Orange, California, do hereby
certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Orange,
acting as the Governing Board of the Successor Agency to the Orange Redevelopment Agency, at
a regular meeting thereof held on the 11th day of December 2018, by the following vote:

AYES: BOARD MEMBERS: Alvarez, Murphy, Nichols, Monaco
NOES: BOARD MEMBERS: None
ABSTAIN: BOARD MEMBERS: None
ABSENT: BOARD MEMBERS: None

MMTZM /l/ C,L)& C\d\\/\

v

Pamela Cﬂleman
Clerk of the Successor Agency
to the Orange Redevelopment Agency

Resolution No. SAORA-031 -3-
12817-0001\2181674v1.doc



Resolution No. SAORA-031
12817-0001\2181674v1.doc

ATTACHMENT A

FORM OF QUITCLAIM DEED

4-



RECORDING REQUESTED BY
AND WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO:

City of Orange

300 E. Chapman Avenue
Orange, California 92866
Attention: City Clerk

APN(s): 386-463-12 [SPACE ABOVE FOR RECORDER’S USE ONLY]

This transfer is exempt from Documentary Transfer Tax
pursuant to Revenue & Taxation Code Section 11922,
and exempt from Recording Fees pursuant to California
Government Code Section 27383.

QUITCLAIM DEED

THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE ORANGE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY does
hereby REMISE, RELEASE AND FOREVER QUITCLAIM to the CITY OF ORANGE, a
municipal corporation, all of the Successor Agency’s right, title and interest in, under and to that
certain real properties (and all improvements and fixtures located thereon) located in the County
of Orange, State of California, described as:

The east 56.00 feet of Lot 1, in Block C of the Spotts Villa Tract, as per map
recorded in book 3, page 45 of Miscellaneous Maps, in the office the County
Recorder of Orange County, California.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Quitclaim Deed as of the
date set forth below.

Dated: ,2018

SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE

ORANGE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY ATTEST:
By:
Rick O-tto . Pamela Coleman
Executive Director Clerk of the Successor Agency

to the Orange Redevelopment Agency

12817-0001\2181677v1.doc



RESOLUTION NO. OB-0039

A RESOLUTION OF THE OVERSIGHT BOARD OF
THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE ORANGE
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY DIRECTING THE
SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO TRANSFER OWNERSHIP
OF CERTAIN GOVERNMENTAL USE PROPERTIES
FORMERLY OWNED BY THE ORANGE
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY TO THE CITY OF
ORANGE PURSUANT TO HEALTH AND SAFETY
CODE SECTION 34181(a).

WHEREAS, pursuant to Assembly Bill X1 26 (which became effective at the end of June
2011), as modified by the California Supreme Court’s decision in California Redevelopment
Association, et al. v. Ana Matosantos, et al. (53 Cal. 4th 231(2011)), the Orange Redevelopment
Agency (the “Redevelopment Agency”) was dissolved as of February 1, 2012 and the Successor
Agency to the Orange Redevelopment Agency (the “Successor Agency”) was constituted; and

WHEREAS, on January 10, 2012, by Resolution No. 10625, the City of Orange declared
itself as the successor agency (the “Successor Agency”) upon the dissolution of the
Redevelopment Agency, subject to all reservations stated in such resolution; and

WHEREAS, Assembly Bill 1484 (which became effective at the end of June 2012)
amended and supplemented AB X1 26 (AB X1 26 and AB 1484, together, being referred to below
as the “RDA Dissolution Act”); and

WHEREAS, the Oversight Board of the Successor Agency to the Orange Redevelopment
Agency (the “Oversight Board”) has been established to direct the Successor Agency to take certain
actions to wind down the affairs of the Agency in accordance with the California Health and Safety
Code; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the RDA Dissolution Act, all assets, properties, contracts, leases,
books and records, buildings, and equipment of the former Redevelopment Agency have been
transferred to the control of the Successor Agency; and

WHEREAS, Health and Safety Code Section 34181(a) sets forth certain requirements for
the Oversight Board to direct the Successor Agency to dispose of the assets and properties of the
former Redevelopment Agency, but provides that the Oversight Board may direct the Successor
Agency to transfer ownership of an asset that was constructed and used for a governmental
purpose to the City of Orange; and

WHEREAS, Health and Safety Code Sections 34191.3 and 34191.5 suspended the
requirements of Section 34181(a) pending the preparation of a long range management plan
pursuant to Section 34191.5, except for transfers of properties for governmental use; and



WHEREAS, the Successor Agency has presented to the Oversight Board information at
its May 9, 2012 meeting providing a general overview of real property assets; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 34181(f), all actions taken by the
Oversight Board pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 34181(a) must be at a public meeting
after at least ten days’ notice to the public of the proposed action; and

NOW, THEREFORE, the Oversight Board of the Successor Agency to the Orange
Redevelopment Agency does hereby find, determine, resolve, and order as follows:

Section 1. The Oversight Board hereby finds and determines that the foregoing recitals
are true and correct.

Section 2. All legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Resolution have occurred.

Section 3. In accordance with Health and Safety Code Section 34181(a), the Oversight
Board hereby finds that all of the property, described below for reference purposes only, was
owned by the former Redevelopment Agency and was constructed and used for a governmental
purpose. Such Governmental Use Properties include:

o Local agency administrative building with related public parking lots
encompassing 0.70 acres comprised of:

e The local agency administrative building encompassing 0.34 acres
(APN 390-382-05) located on West Chapman Avenue between Grand
Street and Orange Avenue;

e The northerly portion of the South Grand Parking Lot encompassing
0.18 acres (APN 390-382-08) located on South Grand Street between
West Chapman Avenue and Almond Avenue;

e The southerly portion of the South Grand Parking Lot encompassing
0.18 acres (APN 390-382-09) located on South Grand Street between
West Chapman Avenue and Almond Avenue;

e  The South Olive Parking Lot encompassing 0.18 acres (APN 390-663-09)
located on South Olive Street between West Chapman Avenue and Almond
Avenue which provides for public parking to support the City of Orange Senior
Center;

e  Public parking lots supporting the Orange Transportation Center and Metrolink
Train Station encompassing 6.38 acres comprised of;


















and that the 2014 Bonds will be secured by a first lien pledge of Pledged Tax Revenues (as

defined in the Indenture).

The Successor Agency hereby further finds and determines, based on all evidence and
testimony contained in the record, that the Successor Agency has made diligent efforts to ensure
that the lowest long-term cost financing will be obtained for the 2014 Bonds, that the financing
shall not provide for any bullets or spikes and shall not use variable rates, and that the Successor
Agency has retained an independent financial advisor (the “Financial Advisor”) in developing
financing proposals and the Successor Agency shall make the work products of the Financial

Advisor available to the California Department of Finance at its request,

Section2.  The Indenture of Ttust in substantially the form submitted at this meeting
and made a part hereof as though set forth in full herein (the “Indenture”), is hereby approved.
The Chair and the Clerk of the Successor Agency, or the Public Finance Manager or Chief
Financial Officer of the County of Orange, California, acting in his/her capacity as designee of
the Successor Agency to the Orange County Development Agency (each, an “Authorized
Officer”) are hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the Indenture in the form
presented at this meeting with such changes insertions and omissions as may be requested by
Bond Counsel and approved by an Authorized Officer, (including any such changes to conform
the documents to the provisions of AB 1484, including those related to permissible pledges of
property tax revenues comprising former tax increment revenues or to respond to purchaser or
rating agency requirements), said execution by an Authorized Officer being conclusive evidence

of such approval.

Section 3. The Bond Purchase Contract (including the Letter of Representatives
appended thereto) between the Successor Agency and Compass Mortgage Corporation, an

Resolution No, 14-048, Item No. 71 _ Page 4 of 6
Successor Agency to OC authorizing the issuance and sale of tax allocation bonds






Alabama corporation (the “Underwriter”), in substantially the form submitted at this meeting and
made a part hereof as though set forth in full herein, is hereby approved. Any Authorized
Officer of the Successor Agency is héreby authorized and directed to execute the Bond Purchase
Contract in the form presented at this meeting with such changes, insertions and omissions as
may be approved by such Authorized Officer, said execution being conclusive evidence of such
approval; provided, however, that the Bond Purchase Contract shall be signed only if the terms
of the agreement are such that (i) the existing indebtedness shall not mature later than the final
maturity of the 2001 Bonds, except to the extent necessary to achieve substantially level debt
service, (ii) the principal amount of the 2014 Bonds will not exceed the amount required to
finance the refunding of the 2001 Bonds, including establishing a customary debt service reserve
fund and paying related costs of issuance, (iii) the net present value savings amount generated
from the issuance of the 2014 Bonds, expressed as a percentage of the aggregate principal

amount being refunded at the scheduled interest rate on the Bonds will be at least 3,00%.

Section 6. The 2001 Bonds Escrow Agreement, in substantially the form submitted at
this meeting and made a part hereof as though set forth in full herein, is hereby approved. Any
Authorized Officer is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the 2001 Bonds
Escrow Agreement in the form presented at this meeting with such changes, insertions and
omissions as may be requested by Bond Counsel and approved by the Authorized Officer, said

execution being conclusive evidence of such approval.

Section 7. The Chair of the Successor Agency, the Clerk of the Successor Agency,
the Authorized Officers and any other proper officer of the Successor Agency, acting singly, be
and each of them hereby is authorized and directed to execute and deliver any and all documents

and instruments relating to the 2014 Bonds and the refunding of-the 2001 Bonds and to do and

Resolution No. 14-048, Item No. 71 Page 5 of 6
Successor Agency to OC authorizing the issuance and sale of tax allocation bonds






cause to be done any and all acts and things necessary or proper for carrying out the transactions
contemplated by the Indenture, the Bond Purchase Contract, the Official Statement, the 2001

Bonds Escrow Agreement, this Resolution and any such agreements.

Section 8§, U.S. Bank National Association is hereby appointed as Trustee and
Dissemination Agent, Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth, a Professional Corporation is hereby

appointed as Bond Counsel and Disclosure Counsel.
Section9.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Resolution is adopted and approved the ﬂ'”aay of

< hm,e , 2014,

Resolution No. 14-048, Item No. 71 Page 6 of 6
Successor Agency to OC authorizing the issuance and sale of tax allocation bonds







Agreement No. 15-002CD2
Between Applied Best Practices, LLC and the County of Orange
for Continuing Disclosure Services

This Agreement for Continuing Disclosure Services hereinafter referred to as “Agreement” is effective
December 1, 2015 by and between the County of Orange, a political subdivision of the State of California,
hereinafter referred to as “County” and Applied Best Practices, LL.C with a place of business at 19900 MacArthur
Blvd., Suite 1100, Irvine, CA 92612 hereinafter referred to as “ABP,” which are sometimes individually referred to
as “Party,” or collectively referred to as “Parties.”

RECITALS
WHEREAS, the County requires professional services for continuing disclosure services; and

WHEREAS, ABP is an independent contractor and is willing and able to perform the continuing disclosure
services described in Attachment A to the County.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties mutually agree as follows:

ARTICLES
1. Scope of Work: The Scope of Work for this Agreement is attached hereto as Attachment A,

2. Compensation: The Agreement, as specified in Attachment B hereto, includes full compensation for
providing all services to be provided under this Agreement.

3. Invoicing/Payment: All invoicing and payment for services performed under this Agreement shall be as
specified in Attachment B, hereto.
AR

4. Agreement Term: The initial term of this Agreement is for three (3) years effective on December 1, 2015, with the
option to extend for two additional one-year terms. Notwithstanding the foregoing, either party may terminate this
Agreement at any time either in whole or in part upon 30 days’ written notice to the other party regarding such
termination.

5. Entire Agreement: This Agreement, including its Attachments, contains the entire agreement between the
Parties with respect to the matters herein and there are no exceptions, alternatives, substitutions, revisions,
understandings, agreements, restrictions, promises, warranties or undertakings, whether oral or written, other
than those set forth herein or referred to herein.

6. Amendments: No alteration or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing
and signed by the Parties.

7. Governing Law and Venue: This Agreement has been negotiated and executed in the State of California and
shall be governed by and construed under the laws of the State of California. In the event of any legal action to
enforce or interpret this Agreement, the sole and exclusive venue shall be a court of competent jurisdiction
located in Orange County, California, and the Parties hereto agree to and do hereby submit to the jurisdiction of
such court, notwithstanding Code of Civil Procedure section 394. Furthermore, the Parties specifically agree to
waive any and all rights to request that an action be transferred for trial to another county.

8. Appropriation/Contingency of Funds: This Agreement is subject to and contingent upon applicable
budgetary appropriations being approved by the County of Orange Board of Supervisors for each fiscal year

Page 1 of 15



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

during the Term of this Agreement. If such appropriations are not approved, this Agreement will be terminated
without penalty to the County.

Taxes: Unless otherwise provided herein or by law, price quoted does not include California state sales or use
tax.

Delivery: Time of delivery of services is of the essence in this Agreement. County reserves the right to refuse
any services and to cancel all or any part of the services that do not conform to the prescribed Scope of Work.

Independent Contractor: ABP shall be considered an independent contractor and neither ABP, its
employees, nor anyone working under ABP shall be considered an agent or an employee of County. Neither
ABP, its employees nor anyone working under ABP, shall qualify for workers’ compensation or other fringe
benefits of any kind through County.

Assignment or Sub-contracting: The terms, covenants, and conditions contained herein shall apply to and
bind the heirs, successors, executors, administrators and assigns of the Parties. Furthermore, neither the
performance of this Agreement nor any portion thereof may be assigned or sub-contracted by ABP without the
express written consent of County. Any attempt by ABP to assign or sub-contract the performance or any
portion thereof of this Agreement without the express written consent of County shall be invalid and shall
constitute a breach of this Agreement.

Non-Discrimination: In the performance of this Agreement, ABP agrees that it will comply with the
requirements of Section 1735 of the California Labor Code and not engage nor permit any sub-contractors to
engage in discrimination in employment of persons because of the race, religious creed, color, national origin,
ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, medical condition, marital status, or sex of such persons. ABP
acknowledges that a violation of this provision shall subject ABP to all the penalties imposed for a violation of
anti-discrimination laws or regulations including but not limited to Section 1720 et seq., of the California Labor
Code.

Performance: ABP shall perform all work under this Agreement, taking necessary steps and precautions to
perform the work to County’s satisfaction. ABP shall be responsible for the professional quality, technical
assurance, timely completion and coordination of all documentation and other services performed by ABP
under this Agreement. ABP shall perform all work diligently, carefully, and in a good and workman-like
manner; shall furnish all labor, supervision, machinery, equipment, materials, and supplies necessary therefore;
shall at its sole expense obtain and maintain all permits and licenses required by public authorities, including
those of County required in its governmental capacity, in connection with performance of the services; and, if
permitted to sub-contract, shall be fully responsible for all work performed by sub-contractors.

Errors and Omissions: All reports, files and other documents prepared and submitted by ABP shall be
complete and shall be carefully checked by the professional(s) identified by ABP as Project Manager and key
personnel, prior to submission to the County. ABP agrees that County review is discretionary and ABP shall
not assume that the County will discover errors and/or omissions. If the County discovers any errors or
omissions prior to approving ABP’s reports, files and other written documents, the reports, files or documents
will be returned to ABP for correction. Should the County or others discover errors or omissions in the reports,
files or other written documents submitted by ABP after County approval thereof, County approval of ABP’s
reports, files or documents shall not be used as a defense by ABP in any action between the County and ABP,
and the reports, files or documents will be returned to ABP for correction at no charge to County.

Warranty: ABP expressly warrants that the services covered by this Agreement are: 1) free of liens or
encumbrances, 2) merchantable and good for the ordinary purposes for which they are used, and 3) fit for the
particular purpose for which they are intended. Acceptance of this Agreement shall constitute an agreement
upon ABP’s part to indemnify, defend and hold County and its indemnities, as identified in paragraph 19 below
and as more fully described in paragraph 19, harmless from liability, loss, damage and expense, including
reasonable counsel fees, incurred or sustained by County by reason of the failure of the services to conform to
such warranties, faulty work performance, negligent or unlawful acts, and non-compliance with any applicable
state or federal codes, regulations, ordinances, orders, or statutes, inctuding the Occupational Safety and Health

Page 2 of 15



17.

18.

19.

20.

Act (OSHA) and the California Industrial Safety Act. Such remedies shall be in addition to any other remedies
provided by law.

Patent/Copyright Materials/Proprietary Infringement: Unless otherwise expressly provided in this
Agreement, ABP shall be solely responsible for clearing the right to use any patented or copyrighted materials
in the performance of this Agreement. ABP warrants that any software as modified through services provided
hereunder will not infringe upon or violate any patent, proprietary right or trade secret right of any third party.
ABP agrees that, in accordance with the more specific requirement contained in paragraph 19 below, it shall
indemnify, defend and hold County and County Indemnitees harmless from any and all such claims and be
responsible for payment of all costs, damages, penalties and expenses related to or arising from such claim(s),
including, but not limited to, attorney’s fees, costs and expenses.

Compliance with Laws: ABP represents and warrants that services to be provided under this Agreement shall
fully comply, at ABP’s expense, with all standards, laws, statutes, restrictions, ordinances, requirements, and
regulations (collectively “laws”), including, but not limited to those issued by County in its governmental
capacity and all other laws applicable to the services at the time services are provided to and accepted by
County. ABP acknowledges that County is relying on ABP to ensure such compliance, and pursuant to the
requirements of paragraph 19 below, ABP agrees that it shall defend, indemnify and hold County and County
Indemnitees harmless from all liability, damages, costs and expenses arising from or related to a violation of
such laws.

Indemnification: ABP agrees to indemnify, defend with counsel approved in writing by County, and hold
County, its elected and appointed officials, officers, employees, agents and those special districts and agencies
which County’s Board of Supervisors acts as the governing Board (“County Indemnitees”) harmless from any
claims, demands or liability of any kind or nature, including but not limited to personal injury or property
damage, arising from or related to the services, products or other performance provided by ABP pursuant to
this Agreement. If judgment is entered against ABP and County by a court of competent jurisdiction because
of the concurrent active negligence of County or County Indemnitees, ABP and County agree that liability will
be apportioned as determined by the court. Neither Party shall request a jury apportionment.

Insurance: Prior to the provision of services under this Agreement, ABP agrees to purchase all required
insurance at ABP’s expense, including all endorsements required herein, necessary to satisfy the County that
the insurance provisions of this Agreement have been complied with. ABP agrees to keep such insurance
coverage, Certificates of Insurance, and endorsements on deposit with the County during the entire term of this
Agreement. In addition, all sub-contractors performing work on behalf of ABP pursuant to this Agreement
shall obtain insurance subject to the same terms and conditions as set forth herein for ABP.

All self-insured retentions (SIRs) and deductibles shall be clearly stated on the Certificate of Insurance. If no
SIRs or deductibles apply, indicate this on the Certificate of Insurance with a zero (0) by the appropriate line of
coverage. Any self-insured retention (SIR) or deductible in an amount in excess of $25,000 ($5,000 for
automobile liability), shall specifically be approved by the County Executive Office (CEO)/Office of Risk
Management upon review of ABP’s current audited financial report.

If ABP fails to maintain insurance acceptable to the County for the full term of this Agreement, the County may
terminate this Agreement.

Qualified Insurer

The policy or policies of insurance must be issued by an insurer with a minimum rating of A- (Secure A.M.
Best's Rating) and VIII (Financial Size Category) as determined by the most current edition of the Best's Key
Rating Guide/Property-Casualty/United States or ambest.com). It is preferred, but not mandatory, that the
insurer be licensed to do business in the state of California (California Admitted Carrier).

If the insurance carrier does not have an A.M. Best Rating of A-/VIII, the CEQ/Office of Risk Management
retains the right to approve or reject a carrier after a review of the company's performance and financial ratings

Page 3 of 15



The policy or policies of insurance maintained by ABP shall provide the minimum limits and coverage as set
forth below:

Coverage Minimum Limits

Commercial General Liability $1,000,000 limit per occurrence
$2,000,000 aggregate

Automobile Liability including coverage $1,000,000 combined single limit
for owned, non-owned and hired vehicles per occurrence
Workers' Compensation Statutory
Employers' Liability Insurance $1,000,000 per occurrence
Professional Liability $1,000,000 per claims made

$1,000,000 aggregate

Required Coverage Forms

The Commercial General Liability coverage shall be written on Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CG 00
01, or a substitute form providing liability coverage at least as broad.

The Business Auto Liability coverage shall be written on ISO form CA 00 01, CA 00 05, CA 0012, CA 00 20,
or a substitute form providing coverage at least as broad.

Required Endorsements

The Commercial General Liability policy shall contain the following endorsements, which shall accompany the
Certificate of insurance:

1) An Additional Insured endorsement using ISO form CG 2010 or CG 2033 or a form at least as broad
naming the County of Orange, its elected and appointed officials, officers, employees, agents as
Additional Insureds.

2) A primary non-contributing endorsement evidencing that ABP’s insurance is primary and any insurance
or self-insurance maintained by the County of Orange shall be excess and non-contributing,

All insurance policies required by this Agreement shall waive all rights of subrogation against the County of
Orange, its elected and appointed officials, officers, agents and employees when acting within the scope of their
appointment or employment.

The Workers’ Compensation policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation endorsement waiving all rights of
subrogation against the County of Orange, its elected and appointed officials, officers, agents and employees.

ABP shall notify County in writing within thirty (30) days of any policy cancellation and ten (10) days for non-
payment of premium and provide a copy of the cancellation notice to County. Failure to provide written notice
of cancellation may constitute a material breach of the Agreement, upon which the County may suspend or
terminate this Agreement.

If ABP’s Professional Liability is a “Claims Made” policy, ABP shall agree to maintain Professional Liability
coverage for two years following completion of Agreement.

The Commercial General Liability policy shall contain a severability of interests clause also known as a
“separation of insureds” clause (standard in the ISO CG 0001 policy).

Page 4 of 15



21,

22,

23.

24,

Insurance certificates should be forwarded to the agency/department address listed on the solicitation.

If ABP fails to provide the insurance certificates and endorsements within seven days of notification by
CEO/Purchasing or the agency/department purchasing division, award may be made to the next qualified
vendor,

County expressly retains the right to require ABP to increase or decrease insurance of any of the above
insurance types throughout the term of this Agreement. Any increase or decrease in insurance will be as deemed
by County of Orange Risk Manager as appropriate to adequately protect County.

County shall notify ABP in writing of changes in the insurance requirements. If ABP does not deposit copies of
acceptable Certificates of Insurance and endorsements with County incorporating such changes within thirty
days of receipt of such notice, this Agreement may be in breach without further notice to ABP, and County shall
be entitled to all legal remedies.

The procuring of such required policy or policies of insurance shall not be construed to limit ABP's 1iabi1ify
hereunder nor to fulfill the indemnification provisions and requirements of this Agreement, nor act in any way to
reduce the policy coverage and limits available from the insurer.

Confidentiality: ABP agrees to maintain the confidentiality of all County and County-related records and
information pursuant to all statutory laws relating to privacy and confidentiality that currently exist or exist at
any time during the term of this Agreement. All such records and information shall be considered confidential
and kept confidential by ABP and ABP’s staff, agents and employees.

ABP Personnel: ABP warrants that all ABP personnel engaged in the performance of work under this
Agreement shall possess sufficient experience and/or education and the required licenses set forth herein in
good standing to perform the services requested by the County. It is understood that Joshua Lentz shall be the
primary personnel responsible for performing the services described herein. Other ABP personnel that will also
be involved include Dan Wiles and Tom Johnsen. County expressly retains the right to have any of ABP’s
personnel removed from performing services under this Agreement to the County. ABP shall effectuate the
removal of the specified ABP personnel from providing any services to the County under this Agreement
within one business day of notification by County. County shall submit the request in writing to ABP’s Project
Manager. The County is not required to provide any reason, rationale or additional factual information if it
elects to request any specific ABP personnel be removed from performing services under this Agreement.

County Contract Administrator and ABP Project Manager: For the purpose of this Agreement, the County
Public Finance Director or designee shall act as the Contract Administrator. The Contract Administrator will
act as liaison between the County and ABP’s Project Manager during the term of the Agreement. The Contract
Administrator, or his designee, will provide overall coordination and guidance of the services to be performed
herein and will address policy issues as necessary and appropriate.

ABP shall appoint a project manager to direct ABP’s efforts in fulfilling ABP’s obligations under this
Agreement (“ABP’s Project Manager”). ABP’s Project Manager shall be subject to approval by the County
and shall not be changed without the written consent of the Contract Administrator, which consent shall not be
unreasonably withheld. The Contract Administrator shall have the right to require the removal and replacement
of ABP’s Project Manager from providing services to the County under this Agreement. The Contract
Administrator shall notify ABP in writing of such action. ABP shall accomplish the removal within 14
calendar day after written notice by the Contract Administrator. The Contract Administrator shall review and
approve the appointment of the replacement for ABP’s Project Manager. Said approval shall not be
unreasonably withheld.

Reports/Meetings: ABP shall develop reports and any other relevant documents necessary to complete the

services and requirements as set forth in this Agreement. The Contract Administrator and ABP’s Project
Manager will meet on reasonable notice to discuss ABP’s performance and progress under this Agreement. If

Page 5 of 15



25,

26.

27,

28.

29,

30.

requested, ABP’s Project Manager and other project personnel shall attend all meetings. ABP shall provide
such information that is requested by the County for the purpose of monitoring progress under this Agreement.

Ownership of Documents: The County has permanent ownership of all directly connected and derivative
materials produced under this Agreement by ABP. All documents, reports and other incidental or derivative
work or materials furnished hereunder shall become and remain the sole properties of the County and may be
used by the County as it may require without additional cost to the County. None of the documents, reports and
other incidental or derivative work or furnished materials shall be used by ABP without the express written
consent of the County.

Title to Data: All materials, documents, data or information obtained from the County data files or any
County medium furnished to ABP in the performance of this Agreement will at all times remain the property of
the County. Such data or information may not be used or copied for direct or indirect use by ABP after
completion or termination of this Agreement without the express written consent of the County. All materials,
documents, data or information, including copies, must be returned to the County at the end of this Agreement.

Records: ABP shall keep an accurate record of time expended by ABP and the sub-contractors working for
ABP in the performance of this Agreement. Such record shall be available for periodic inspection by the
County at reasonable times,

Audits/Inspections: ABP agrees to permit the County’s Auditor-Controller or the Auditor-Controller’s
authorized representative (including auditors from a private auditing firm hired by the County) access during
normal working hours to all books, accounts, records, reports, files, financial records, supporting
documentation, including payroll and accounts payable/receivable records, and other papers or property of ABP
for the purpose of auditing or inspecting any aspect of performance under this Agreement. The inspection
and/or audit will be confined to those matters connected with the performance of the Agreement including, but
not limited to, the costs of administering the Agreement. The County will provide reasonable notice of such an
audit or inspection.

The County reserves the right to audit and verify ABP’s records before final payment is made.

ABP agrees to maintain such records for possible audit for a minimum of three years after final payment, unless
a longer period of records retention is stipulated under this Agreement or by law. ABP agrees to allow
interviews of any employees or others who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further,
ABP agrees to include a similar right to the County to audit records and interview staff of any sub-contractor
related to performance of this Agreement.

Should ABP cease to exist as a legal entity, ABP’s records pertaining to this Agreement shall be forwarded to
the surviving entity in a merger or acquisition or, in the event of liquidation, to the Contract Administrator.

Publication: No copies of schedules, written documents, and computer based data, photographs, maps or
graphs, resulting from performance or prepared in connection with this Agreement, are to be released by ABP
and/or anyone acting under the supervision of ABP to any person, partnership, company, corporation, or
agency, without prior written approval by the County, except as necessary for the performance of the services
of this Agreement. All press releases, including graphic display information to be published in newspapers,
magazines, efc., are to be administered only by the County unless otherwise agreed to by both Parties.

Contflict of Interest: ABP shall exercise reasonable care and diligence to prevent any actions or conditions that
could result in a conflict with the best interests of the County. This obligation shall apply to ABP; ABP’s
employees, agents, and relatives; sub-tier ABP’s and third parties associated with accomplishing services
hereunder. ABP’s efforts shall include, but not be limited to establishing precautions to prevent its employees
or agents from making, receiving, providing or offering gifts, entertainment, payments, loans or other
considerations which could be deemed to appear to influence individuals to act contrary to the best interests of
the County. The County Board of Supervisors policy prohibits its employees from engaging in activities
involving a conflict of interest. ABP shall not, during the period of this Agreement, employ any County
employee for any purpose.

Page 6 of 15



31.

32,

33.

34.

35.

36.

Termination: In addition to any other remedies or rights it may have by law, County has the right to terminate
this Agreement without penalty immediately with cause or after 30 days’ written notice without cause, unless
otherwise specified. Cause shall be defined as any breach of this Agreement, any misrepresentation or fraud on
the part of ABP. Exercise by County of its right to terminate the Agreement shall relieve County of all further
obligations.

Breach of Contract: The failure of ABP to comply with any of the provisions, covenants or conditions of this
Agreement shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement. In such event the County may, and in addition
to any other remedies available at law, in equity, or otherwise specified in this Agreement:

a. Afford ABP written notice of the breach and ten (10) calendar days or such shorter time that may be
specified in this Agreement within which to cure the breach;
. Discontinue payment to ABP for and during the period in which ABP is in breach; and
c. Offset against any monies billed by ABP but yet unpaid by the County those monies disallowed pursuant
to the above.

Disputes: The Parties shall deal in good faith and attempt to resolve potential disputes informally. If a dispute
concerning a question of fact arising under the terms of this Agreement is not disposed of in a reasonable
period of time by ABP’s Project Manager and the County’s Contract Administrator, such matter shall be
brought to the attention of the Purchasing Agent by way of the following process:

a. ABP shall submit to the Purchasing Agent a written demand for a final decision regarding the disposition of
any dispute between the Parties arising under, related to, or involving this Agreement, unless the County,
on its own initiative, has already rendered such a final decision.

b. ABP’s written demand shall be fully supported by factual information, and, if such demand involves a cost
adjustment to this Agreement, ABP shall include with the demand a written statement signed by a senior
official indicating that the demand is made in good faith, that the supporting data are accurate and
complete, and that the amount requested accurately reflects the amount for which ABP believes the County
is liable.

c. Pending the final resolution of any dispute arising under, related to, or involving this Agreement, ABP
agrees to diligently proceed with the performance of his Agreement, including the provision of services.
ABP’s failure to diligently proceed shall be considered a material breach of this Agreement. Any final
decision of the County shall be expressly identified as such, shall be in writing, and shall be signed by the
County’s Purchasing Agent or his designee. If the County fails to render a decision within 90 days after
receipt of ABP’s demand, it shall be deemed a final decision adverse to ABP’s contentions. The County’s
final decision shall be conclusive and binding regarding the dispute unless ABP commences action in a
court of competent jurisdiction to contest such decision within 90 days following the date of the County’s
final decision or one year following the accrual of the cause of action, whichever is later.

Orderly Termination: Upon termination or other expiration of this Agreement, each Party shall promptly
return to the other Party all papers, materials, and other properties of the other held by each for purposes of
execution of the Agreement. In addition, each Party will assist the other Party in orderly termination of this
Agreement and the transfer of all aspects, tangible and intangible, as may be necessary for the orderly, non-
disruptive business continuation of each Party.

Force Majeure: ABP shall not be assessed with liquidated damages or unsatisfactory performance penalties
during any delay beyond the time named for the performance of this Agreement caused by any act of God, war,
civil disorder, employment strike or other cause beyond its reasonable control, provided ABP gives written
notice of the cause of the delay to County within 36 hours of the start of the delay and ABP avails himself of
any available remedies.

Consent to Breach Not Waiver: No term or provision of this Agreement shall be deemed waived and no
breach excused, unless such waiver or consent shall be in writing and signed by the Party claimed to have

Page 7 of 15



37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42,

43.

44.

45.

waived or consented. Any consent by any Party to, or waiver of, a breach by the other, whether express or
implied, shall not constitute consent to, waiver of, or excuse for any other different or subsequent breach.

Remedies Not Exclusive: The remedies for breach set forth in this Agreement are cumulative as to one
another and as to any other provided by law, rather than exclusive; and the expression of certain remedies in
this Agreement does not preclude resort by either Party to any other remedies provided by law.

Notices: Any and all notices, requests demands and other communications contemplated, called for, permitted,
or required to be given herein shall be in writing, except through the course of the County’s Contract
Administrator and ABP’s Project Manager routine exchange of information and cooperation during the terms of
the work and services. Any written communications shall be deemed to have been duly given upon actual in-
person delivery, if delivery is by direct hand or upon delivery on the actual day of receipt or no greater than
four calendar days after being mailed by US certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, postage
prepaid, whichever occurs first. The date of mailing shall count as the first day. All communications shall be
addressed to the appropriate Party at the address stated herein or such other address as the Parties hereto may
designate by written notice from time to time in the manner aforesaid.

County: County Executive Office/Public Finance Division
Attn: Public Finance Director
333 W. Santa Ana Blvd., 3 Floor
Santa Ana, CA 92701

ABP Applied Best Practices
19900 MacArthur Blvd, Suite 1100
Irvine, CA 92612

County Child Support Enforcement: ABP is required to comply with the child support enforcement
requirements of the County. Failure of ABP to comply with all federal, state, and local reporting requirements
for child support enforcement or to comply with all lawfully served Wage and Earnings Assignment Orders and
Notices of Assignment shall constitute a material breach of the Agreement. Failure to cure such breach within
60 calendar days of notice from the County shall constitute grounds for termination of this Agreement.

Change Of Ownership: ABP agrees that if there is a change or transfer in ownership of ABP’s business prior
to completion of this Agreement, the new owners shall be required under terms of sale or other transfer to
assume ABP’s duties and obligations contained in this Agreement and complete them to the satisfaction of
County.

Precedence: The documents herein consist of this Agreement and its Attachments. In the event of a conflict
between or among the Agreement documents, the order of precedence shall be the provisions of the main body
of this Agreement, i.e., those provisions set forth in the articles of this Agreement, and then the Attachments.

Headings: The various headings and numbers herein, the grouping of provisions of this Agreement into
separate clauses and paragraphs, and the organization hereof are for the purpose of convenience only and shall
not limit or otherwise affect the meaning hereof.

Severability: If any term, covenant, condition or provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent
jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remainder of the provisions hereof shall remain in full
force and effect and shall in no way be affected, impaired or invalidated thereby.

Calendar Days: Any reference to the word “day” or “days” herein shall mean calendar day or calendar days,
respectively, unless otherwise expressly provided.

Attorney Fees: In any action or proceeding to enforce or interpret any provision of this Agreement, or where

any provision hereof is validly asserted as a defense, each Party shall bear its own attorney’s fees, costs and
expenses.

Page 8 of 15



46.

47,

48.

49,

50.

51.

52.

53.

54.

55.

Interpretation: This Agreement has been negotiated at arm’s length and between persons sophisticated and
knowledgeable in the matters dealt with in this Agreement. In addition, each Party has been represented by
experienced and knowledgeable independent legal counsel of their own choosing, or has knowingly declined to
seek such counsel despite being encouraged and given the opportunity to do so. Each Party further
acknowledges that they have not been influenced to any extent whatsoever in executing this Agreement by any
other Party hereto or by any person representing them, or both. Accordingly, any rule of law (including
California Civil Code Section 1654) or legal decision that would require interpretation of any ambiguities in
this Agreement against the Party that has drafted it is not applicable and is waived. The provisions of this
Agreement shall be interpreted in a reasonable manner to affect the purpose of the Parties and this Agreement.

Authority: The Parties to this Agreement represent and warrant that this Agreement has been duly authorized
and executed and constitutes the legally binding obligation of their respective organization or entity,
enforceable in accordance with its terms,

Survival: Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary herein, the provisions of paragraphs 15, 16, 17, 18,
19, and 20 shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

Employee Eligibility Verification: ABP warrants that it fully complies with all Federal and State statutes and
regulations regarding the employment of aliens and others and that all its employees performing work under
this Agreement meet the citizenship or alien status requirement set forth in Federal statues and regulations.
ABP shall obtain, from all employees performing work hereunder, all verification and other documentation of
employment eligibility status required by Federal or State statutes and regulations including, but not limited to,
the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, 8 U.S.C. §1324 et seq., as they currently exist and as they
may be hereafter amended. ABP shall retain all such documentation for all covered employees for the period
prescribed by the law. ABP shall indemnify, defend with counsel approved in writing by County, and hold
harmless, the County, its agents, officers, and employees from employer sanctions and any other liability which
may be assessed against ABP or the County or both in connection with any alleged violation of any Federal or
State statutes or regulations pertaining to the eligibility for employment of any persons performing work under
this Agreement.

Bills and Liens: ABP shall pay promptly all indebtedness for labor, materials, and equipment used in
performance of the work. ABP shall not permit any lien or charge to attach to the work or the premises, but if
any does so attach, ABP shall promptly procure its release and, in accordance with the requirements of
paragraph 19 above, indemnify, defend, and hold County harmless and be responsible for payment of all costs,
damages, penalties and expenses related to or arising from or related thereto.

Changes in Service: ABP shall make no changes in the work or perform any additional work without the
County’s specific written approval.

Terms and Conditions: ABP acknowledges that it has read and agrees to all terms and conditions included in
this Agreement.

Incorporation: This Agreement and its Attachments A and B attached hereto and incorporated by reference
and made a part of this Agreement.

New General Fund Obligations and Tax Allocation Bonds Included: Notwithstanding any provisions to the
contrary herein, the services to be performed by ABP shall apply equally to any new bonds issued subsequent
to the effective date of this Agreement.

Compliance with Gift and Political Contribution Ban: By executing this Agreement, ABP covenants to the
County that it has complied in all respects with the “Ban on Political Contributions and Gifts” provisions of
Article V of the County of Orange, Board of Supervisors, Policies and Procedures for Consideration and
Approval of Proposed Public Financings.

Page 9 of 15



56.

57.

Changes in Staff: The Contract Administrator has the reasonable right to approve or disapprove any proposed
changes in ABP’s staff from the individuals named in this Agreement. The Contract Administrator shall be
provided with a resume of any proposed substitute and shall be given the opportunity to interview that person
prior to his or her decision to approve or disapprove.

ABP Name Change: ABP shall provide written notice to the Contract Administrator at least 30 days prior to
any changes to ABP’s current legal name, if practicable, but in any event, not later than the date of any such
change. The Contract Administrator shall be provided with all pertinent information relating thereto which is

requested.

Page 10 of 15



AGREEMENT SIGNATURE PAGE

The Parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the dates shown opposite their respective signatures below.

Applied Best Practices, LLC*

Joshua l. Lentz V  Precident
Print Name Title

Date
Print . Title

Date

* If the Contractor is a corporation, signatures of two specific corporate officers are required as further set
forth.

The first corporate officer signature must be one of the following: 1) the Chairman of the Board; 2) the
President; 3) any Vice President.

The second corporate officer signature must be one of the following: a) Secretary; b) Assistant Secretary; ¢)
Chief Financial Officer; d) Assistant Treasurer.

In the alternative, a single corporate signature is acceptable when accompanied by a corporate resolution
demonstrating the legal authority of the signature to bind the company.

3 ok ok o ok o ok ok o ke ke e e ok ok o e ke e ae ok e ok ok afe ok ok ol s ok ok e e e ok e afeafe e ok ok ok ok ok 3K ok ok o ok ok ok o p ke e e o s al ok o sk ok e sk o sleofe e afe ok ok ok ok ok ok she ok sk sk o ok sk ok
of Orange, subdivision of the State of California

ve Ma

Print Title

W I 20

Signature Date

e 3o o i st obeshe e ke ok o o ok ok o ok ke e e e e ke b bk ol afs ok ok o sl ok ae sk o Aok ot ok s ok o ok o s ok o o ok 3k ok ol s o 3 o ok ok ok 0 3 ok s o e sfe e e fe ke s sk s ol ke e sl sl ol skske ok ok

Page 11 of 15



TASK 1.

TASK IL

TASK III.

ATTACHMENT A

SCOPE OF WORK

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE SERVICES

A.

ABP will obtain copies of Audited Financial Statements and other data as stated in the
Continuing Disclosure Certificate (“Certificate”) for all outstanding County municipal debt
(excluding Community Facilities Districts and Assessment Districts) including any future
issuances that require ongoing disclosure from the County for filing the Annual or Semi-
Annual Report (“Report™). Following is a listing of the outstanding County municipal debt:

i. 1996A & 1997A Pension Obligation Bonds
ii. OCPFA Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2005
iii. OCPFA Lease Revenue Bonds (Co-Gen), Series 2006
iv. Teeter Plan Obligation Notes, Series B, 2013
v. SOCPFA Juvenile Justice Center Revenue Refunding, Series 2012
vi. Successor Agency to OCDA (Santa Ana Heights) Tax Allocation Bonds, 2014
vii. Successor Agency to OCDA (NDAPP) Tax Allocation Bonds, 2014

ABP will prepare the Reports in the format acceptable to the County and include the
requirements of the Certificate, submit to the County for review and approval five (5) business
days before deadline, and disseminate filings with the Municipal Securities Rulemaking
Board’s (MSRB) through the Electronic Municipal Market Access (EMMA) website of the
MSRB or any successor repository to meet the filing deadline as defined in the Certificate.

ABP will disseminate Audited Financial Statements with each individual Report as required by
the Certificate.

ABP will obtain confirmation of filing with EMMA for the Reports and the Audited Financial
Statements.

ABP will provide copies of the completed Reports and confirmation of filings with EMMA to
the County Executive Office, Public Finance Division.

ABP will be notified by County to prepare significant/material event notices and/or other
required notices, disseminate each notice with EMMA upon review and authorization from
County and provide copies to County.

ORGANIZE COUNTY’S POSTINGS WITH EMMA

A.

B.

C.

ABP will ensure all prior and current Reports filed are linked appropriately to the respective
CUSIPs with EMMA,

ABP will assist County and make recommendations, if any, on EMMA filings.

ABP will implement any recommendations, if any, with EMMA upon County approval.

CREDIT RATING SERVICES

A,

ABP will monitor the market on a weekly basis for rating changes pertaining to all outstanding
municipal debt and the County’s issuer rating and provide a rating summary the following
week. ABP will notify the County immediately in writing of the rating changes.

Upon receipt by the County of such rating change, the County shall contact ABP and give them

Page 12 of 15



authorization to assemble a significant/material event notice pertaining to the rating change.

C. ABP shall prepare and assemble the significant/material event notice into a final form and
obtain approval from County prior to submission with EMMA.

D. ABP shall submit in electronic format and confirm submission of the reporting of
significant/material event notices in EMMA and provide copies to County.

TASK V. SPECIAL SERVICES

A. From time to time, County may request ABP to engage in Special Services. Special Services
are defined as services in addition to those delineated in TASK I - III in the Scope of Work.
All Special Services shall be requested in writing by the Contract Administrator. Special
Services include, but are not limited to, the following:

1. Attend meetings

2. Prepare training materials
3. Prepare additional reports

Page 13 of 15



ATTACHMENT B

COMPENSATION/PAYMENT

Compensation: This is an Agreement between the County and ABP for continuing disclosure services as
provided in the Scope of Work, Attachment A. ABP agrees to accept the specified compensation as set forth in
this Agreement as full remuneration for performing all services and furnishing all staffing and materials
required, for any reasonably unforeseen difficulties which may arise or be encountered in the execution of the
services until acceptance, for risks connected with the services, and for performance by ABP of all its duties
and obligations hereunder. The County shall have no obligation to pay any sum in excess of total Agreement

amount specified below unless authorized by amendment.

Payment Schedule: County shall pay ABP for each type of service in accordance to the fee and hourly rates
as set forth below. In no event shall compensation under this Agreement exceed $150,000 for a 3 year term or

$250,000 for a 5 year term.
Year 1 Year 2 Year 3
Type of Service
Continuing Disclosure Services — per
Report — Task I.A. — LE. ? $1,200 $1,200 $1,200
Continuing Disclosure Services — per
Significant/Material Event Notice — $150 $150 $150
Task LF.
Organize County’s Postings — per Hourly Hourly Hourly
Hour — Task II Rate Rate Rate
Credit Rating Services — per Hour —  Hourlynot  Hourlynot  Hourly not
Task IILA to Exceed  to Exceed  to Exceed
$1,000 per  $1,000 per  $1,000 per
month month month
Credit Rating Services — per
Significant/Material Event Notice — $150 $150 $150
Task III.B — IIL.D.
Special Services — per Hour — Task Hourly Hourly Hourly
v Rate Rate Rate
Rates
Title Hourly Rate
Principals $ 290
Senior Vice Presidents $ 275
Vice Presidents $ 225
Assistant Vice Presidents $ 195
Senior Associates $ 150
Associates $ 125
Analysts $ 85
Administrative Assistants $ 65
Clericals $ 35

Page 14 of 15

* Year 4 if
renewed

$1,200

$150

Hourly
Rate
Hourly not
to Exceed
$1,000 per
month

$150

Hourly
Rate

* Year 5 if
renewed

$1,200

$150

Hourly
Rate
Hourly not
to Exceed
$1,000 per
month

$150

Hourly
Rate



3.

Firm Discount and Pricing Structure: ABP guarantees that prices quoted are equal to or less than prices
quoted to any other local, State or Federal government entity for services of equal or lesser scope. ABP agrees
that no price increases shall be passed along to the County during the term of this Agreement not otherwise
specified and provided for within this Agreement.

ABP’s Expense: ABP will be responsible for all costs related to photo copying, telephone communications,
fax communications, and parking while on County sites during the performance of work and services under this
Agreement. The County will not provide free parking for any service in the County Civic Center.

Payment Term: Invoices are to be submitted within 30 days from the date ABP completes deliverables as
defined in the Scope of Work, Attachment A. ABP shall reference Agreement number and bond issue on the
invoice. Payment will be net 30 days after receipt, and approval, by County of an invoice in a format
acceptable to the County and verified and approved by the agency/department and subject to routine processing
requirements,

Invoices shall cover services not previously invoiced. ABP shall reimburse the County for any monies paid to
ABP for services not provided or when services do not meet the Agreement requirements.

Payments made by the County shall not preclude the right of the County from thereafter disputing any items or
services involved or billed under this Agreement and shall not be construed as acceptance of any part of the
services.

ABP shall invoice the County monthly for services provided under Task IV of the Scope of Work, Attachment
A based on the hourly rates provided in Section 2 — Payment Schedule, above. Special Services shall be paid if
specifically authorized in writing by the Contract Administrator. ABP’s invoices for Special Services shall
include the name(s) of ABP’s personnel performing the Special Services, classification, number of hours
worked, and hourly rate. Invoices shall be supported with such other documentation as the Contract
Administrator may deem necessary.

Payment — Invoicing Instructions: ABP will provide an invoice on ABP’s letterhead for services rendered.
Each invoice shall be reviewed by County staff prior to payment to ensure that the billing is consistent with the
compensation provisions of this Agreement. Each invoice will have a number and will include the following
information;

1. ABP’s name and address

2. ABP’s remittance address, if different from above
3. Delivery/service address

4. ABP agreement number (15-002CD2)

5. Type of fees/service

6. Specify the specific bond issue

7. Sales tax, if applicable

8. Dates of fees/service

9. Brief description of fees/service

10. ABP’s Federal 1.D. Number

The responsibility for providing an acceptable invoice to the County for payment rests with ABP. Incomplete
or incorrect invoices are not acceptable and will be returned to ABP for correction.

Invoices and support documentation are to be forwarded to:

County of Orange

County Executive Office

333 W. Santa Ana Blvd., 3" Floor
Santa Ana, CA 92701

Attn: Public Finance Accounting

Page 15 of 15



D CONTVCA

CONTRACT NO. 017-18003BC
FOR
GENERAL PUBLIC FINANCE LEGAL SERVICES
BETWEEN
CEO/PUBLIC FINANCE DIVISION
AND

STRADLING YOCCA CARLSON & RAUTH




County of Orange Executive Office, Public Finance
General Public Finance Legal Services

CONTRACT 017-18003BC
with
Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth
for
General Public Finance Legal Services

This Contract for general public finance legal services hereinafter referred to as (“Contract”) is made and
entered into as of the date fully executed by and between the County of Orange, a political subdivision of the State
of California, hereinafter referred to as “County” and Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth, a Professional
Corporation, with a place of business at 660 Newport Center Drive, Suite 1600, Newport Beach, CA 92660,
hereinafter referred to as “Contractor” or “Stradling”, which are sometimes individually referred to as “Party,” or
collectively referred to as “Parties.”

ATTACHMENTS

This Contract is comprised of this documents and the following Attachments, which are attached hereto
and incorporated by reference into this Contract:

Attachment A — Scope of Work
Attachment B — Payment/Compensation
Attachment C — Staffing Plan
RECITALS

WHEREAS, Contractor and County are entering into this Contract for general public finance legal
services under a firm fixed fee Contract; and

WHEREAS, County solicited Contract for general public finance legal services as set forth herein, and
Contractor represented that it is qualified to general public finance legal services to the County as further set forth

here; and

WHEREAS, Contractor agrees to provide general public finance legal services to the County as further
set forth in the Scope of Work, attached hereto as Attachment A; and

WHEREAS, County agrees to pay Contractor based on the schedule of fees set forth in
Payment/Compensation, attached hereto as Attachment B; and

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties mutually agree as follows:
DEFINITIONS
DPA shall mean the Deputy Purchasing Agent assigned to this Contract.
ARTICLES
General Terms and Conditions:
A. Governing Law and Venue: This Contract has been negotiated and executed in the state of California
and shall be governed by and construed under the laws of the state of California. In the event of any legal
action to enforce or interpret this Contract, the sole and exclusive venue shall be a court of competent

jurisdiction located in Orange County, California, and the parties hereto agree to and do hereby submit to
the jurisdiction of such court, notwithstanding Code of Civil Procedure Section 394. Furthermore, the

Contract # 017-18003BC Page 1 0f 21



County of Orange Executive Office, Public Finance

General Public Finance Legal Services
parties specifically agree to waive any and all rights to request that an action be transferred for adjudication
to another county.

B. Entire Contract: This Contract contains the entire Contract between the parties with respect to the
matters herein, and there are no restrictions, promises, warranties or undertakings other than those set forth
herein or referred to herein. No exceptions, alternatives, substitutes or revisions are valid or binding on
County unless authorized by County in writing, Electronic acceptance of any additional terms, conditions
or supplemental Contracts by any County employee or agent, including but not limited to installers of
software, shall not be valid or binding on County unless accepted in writing by County’s Purchasing Agent
or designee.

C. Amendments: No alteration or variation of the terms of this Contract shall be valid unless made in writing
and signed by the parties; no oral understanding or agreement not incorporated herein shall be binding on
either of the parties; and no exceptions, alternatives, substitutes or revisions are valid or binding on County
unless authorized by County in writing.

D. Taxes: Unless otherwise provided herein or by law, price quoted does not include California state sales
or use tax. Out-of-state Contractors shall indicate California Board of Equalization permit number and
sales permit number on invoices, if California sales tax is added and collectable. If no permit numbers are
shown, sales tax will be deducted from payment. The Auditor-Controller will then pay use tax directly to
the State of California in lien of payment of sales tax to the Contractor.

E. Delivery: Time of delivery of goods or services is of the essence in this Contract. County reserves the
right to refuse any goods or services and to cancel all or any part of the goods not conforming to applicable
specifications, drawings, samples or descriptions or services that do not conform to the prescribed
statement of work. Acceptance of any part of the order for goods shall not bind County to accept future
shipments nor deprive it of the right to return goods already accepted at Contractor’s expense. Over
shipments and under shipments of goods shall be only as agreed to in writing by County. Delivery shall
not be deemed to be complete until all goods or services have actually been received and accepted in
writing by County.

F. Acceptance Payment: Unless otherwise agreed to in writing by County, 1) acceptance shall not be
deemed complete unless in writing and until all the goods/services have actually been received, inspected,
and tested to the satisfaction of County, and 2) payment shall be made in arrears after satisfactory
acceptance.

G. Warranty: Contractor expressly warrants that the goods covered by this Contract are 1) free of liens or
encumbrances, 2) merchantable and good for the ordinary purposes for which they are used, and 3) fit for
the particular purpose for which they are intended. Acceptance of this order shall constitute an agreement
upon Contractor’s part to indemnify, defend and hold County and its indemnities as identified in paragraph
“Z” below, and as more fully described in paragraph “Z,” harmless from liability, loss, damage and
expense, including reasonable counsel fees, incurred or sustained by County by reason of the failure of
the goods/services to conform to such warranties, faulty work performance, negligent or unlawful acts,
and non-compliance with any applicable state or federal codes, ordinances, orders, or statutes, including
the Occupational Safety and Health Act (OSHA) and the California Industrial Safety Act. Such remedies
shall be in addition to any other remedies provided by law.

H. Intentionally left blank.

I. Assignment: The terms, covenants, and conditions contained herein shall apply to and bind the heirs,
successors, executors, administrators and assigns of the parties. Furthermore, neither the performance of
this Contract nor any portion thereof may be assigned by Contractor without the express written consent
of County. Any attempt by Contractor to assign the performance or any portion thereof of this Contract
without the express written consent of County shall be invalid and shall constitute a breach of this Contract.

Contract # 017-18003BC Page 2 of 21



County of Orange Executive Office, Public Finance
General Public Finance Legal Services

J. Non-Discrimination: In the performance of this Contract, Contractor agrees that it will comply with the
requirements of Section 1735 of the California Labor Code and not engage nor permit any subcontractors
to engage in discrimination in employment of persons because of the race, religious creed, color, national
origin, ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, medical condition, marital status, or sex of such
persons. Contractor acknowledges that a violation of this provision shall subject Contractor to penalties
pursuant to Section 1741 of the California Labor Code.

K. Termination: In addition to any other remedies or rights it may have by law, County has the right to
immediately terminate this Contract without penalty for cause or after 30 days’ written notice without
cause, unless otherwise specified. Cause shall be defined as any material breach of contract, any
misrepresentation or fraud on the part of the Contractor. Exercise by County of its right to terminate the
Contract shall relieve County of all further obligation.

L. Consent to Breach Not Waiver: No term or provision of this Contract shall be deemed waived and no
breach excused, unless such waiver or consent shall be in writing and signed by the party claimed to have
waived or consented. Any consent by any party to, or waiver of, a breach by the other, whether express
or implied, shall not constitute consent to, waiver of, or excuse for any other different or subsequent
breach.

M. Independent Contractor: Contractor shall be considered an independent contractor and neither
Contractor, its employees, nor anyone working under Contractor shall be considered an agent or an
employee of County. Neither Contractor, its employees nor anyone working under Contractor shall
qualify for workers’ compensation or other fringe benefits of any kind through County.

N. Performance Warranty: Contractor shall warrant all work under this Contract, taking necessary steps
and precautions to perform the work to County’s satisfaction. Contractor shall be responsible for the
professional quality, technical assurance, timely completion and coordination of all documentation and
other goods/services furnished by the Contractor under this Contract. Contractor shall perform all work
diligently, carefully, and in a good and workmanlike manner; shall furnish all necessary labor, supervision,
machinery, equipment, materials, and supplies, shall at its sole expense obtain and maintain all permits
and licenses required by public authorities, including those of County required in its governmental
capacity, in connection with performance of the work. If permitted to subcontract, Contractor shall be
fully responsible for all work performed by subcontractors.

O. Insurance Requirements: Prior to the provision of services under this Contract, the Contractor agrees to
purchase all required insurance at Contractor’s expense, including all endorsements required herein,
necessary to satisfy the County that the insurance provisions of this Contract have been complied with.
Contractor agrees to keep such insurance coverage, Certificates of Insurance, and endorsements on deposit
with the County during the entire term of this Contract. In addition, all subcontractors performing work
on behalf of Contractor pursuant to this Contract shall obtain insurance subject to the same terms and
conditions as set forth herein for Contractor.

Contractor shall ensure that all subcontractors performing work on behalf of Contractor pursuant to this
Contract shall be covered under Contractor’s insurance as an Additional Insured or maintain insurance
subject to the same terms and conditions as set forth herein for Contractor. Contractor shall not allow
subcontractors to work if subcontractors have less than the level of coverage required by County from
Contractor under this Contract. It is the obligation of Contractor to provide notice of the insurance
requirements to every subcontractor and to receive proof of insurance prior to allowing any subcontractor
to begin work. Such proof of insurance must be maintained by Contractor through the entirety of this
Contract for inspection by County representative(s) at any reasonable time.

All self-insured retentions (SIRs) shall be clearly stated on the Certificate of Insurance. Any self-insured
retention (SIR) in an amount in excess of Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000) shall specifically be approved

Contract # 017-18003BC Page 3 of 21



County of Orange Executive Office, Public Finance

General Public Finance Legal Services
by the County’s Risk Manager, or designee, upon review of Contractor’s current audited financial report.
If Contractor’s SIR is approved, Contractor, in addition to, and without limitation of, any other indemnity
provision(s) in this Contract, agrees that the provisions of California Civil Code Section 2860 shall apply
to any and all actions to which the duty to defend stated below applies, and the Contractor’s SIR provision
shall be interpreted as though the Contractor was an insurer and the County was the insured. If Contractor’s
SIR is approved, except for claims related to the rendering of professional services which shall be
governed by Paragraph Z below, Contractor, in addition to, and without limitation of, any other indemnity
provision(s) in this Contract, agrees to defend the County for any claim related to an act or omission by
Contractor and agrees such duty to defend shall be absolute.

If the Contractor fails to maintain insurance acceptable to the County for the full term of this Contract, the
County may terminate this Contract.

Qualified Insurer

The policy or policies of insurance must be issued by an insurer with a minimum rating of A- (Secure
A.M. Best's Rating) and VIII (Financial Size Category as determined by the most current edition of the
Best's Key Rating Guide/Property-Casualty/United States or ambest.com). It is preferred, but not
mandatory, that the insurer be licensed to do business in the state of California (California Admitted
Carrier).

If the insurance carrier does not have an A.M. Best Rating of A-/VIII, the CEO/Office of Risk
Management retains the right to approve or reject a carrier after a review of the company's performance
and financial ratings.

The policy or policies of insurance maintained by the Contractor shall provide the minimum limits and
coverage as set forth below:

Coverage Minimum Limits

Commercial General Liability $1,000,000 per occurrence
$2,000,000 aggregate

Automobile Liability including coverage $1,000,000 per occurrence

for owned, non-owned and hired vehicles

Workers Compensation Statutory
Employers Liability Insurance $1,000,000 per occurrence
Professional Liability $1,000,000 per claims-made

$1,000,000 aggregate

Required Coverage Forms
The Commercial General Liability coverage shall be written on Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CG

00 01, or a substitute form providing liability coverage at least as broad.

The Business Auto Liability coverage shall be written on ISO form CA 00 01, CA 00 05, CA 0012, CA
00 20, or a substitute form providing coverage at least as broad.

Required Endorsements

The Commercial General Liability policy shall contain the following endorsements, which shall
accompany the Certificate of Insurance:

Contract # 017-18003BC Page 4 of 21



County of Orange Executive Office, Public Finance
General Public Finance Legal Services

1) An Additional Insured endorsement using ISO form CG 20 26 04 13or a form at least as broad
naming the County of Orange its elected and appointed officials, officers, agents and employees
as Additional Insureds, or provide blanket coverage, which will state A4S REQUIRED BY
WRITTEN CONTRACT..

2) A primary non-contributing endorsement using ISO form CG 20 01 04 13, or a form at least as
broad evidencing that the Contractor’s insurance is primary and any insurance or self-insurance
maintained by the County of Orange shall be excess and non-contributing.

The Workers” Compensation policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation endorsement waiving all rights
of subrogation against the County of Orange, its elected and appointed officials, officers, agents and
employees or provide blanket coverage, which will state AS REQUIRED BY WRITTEN CONTRACT.

All insurance policies required by this Contract shall waive all rights of subrogation against the County of
Orange, its elected and appointed officials, officers, agents and employees when acting within the scope
of their appointment or employment.

Contractor shall notify County in writing within thirty (30) days of any policy cancellation and ten (10)
days for non-payment of premium and provide a copy of the cancellation notice to County. Failure to
provide written notice of cancellation may constitute a material breach of the Contract, upon which the
County may suspend or terminate this Contract.

If Contractor’s Professional Liability are “Claims-Made” policy(ies), Contractor shall agree to maintain
coverage for two (2) years following the completion of the Contract.

The Commercial General Liability policy shall contain a severability of interests clause also known as a
“separation of insureds” clause (standard in the ISO CG 0001 policy).
Insurance certificates should be forwarded to the agency/department address listed on the solicitation.

If the Contractor fails to provide the insurance certificates and endorsements within seven (7) days of
notification by CEO/Purchasing or the agency/department purchasing division, award may be made to the
next qualified vendor.

County expressly retains the right to require Contractor to increase or decrease insurance of any of the
above insurance types throughout the term of this Contract. Any increase or decrease in insurance will be
as deemed by County of Orange Risk Manager as appropriate to adequatety protect County.

County shall notify Contractor in writing of changes in the insurance requirements. If Contractor does not
deposit copies of acceptable Certificates of Insurance and endorsements with County incorporating such
changes within thirty (30) days of receipt of such notice, this Contract may be in breach without further
notice to Contractor, and County shall be entitled to all legal remedies.

The procuring of such required policy or policies of insurance shall not be construed to limit Contractor's
liability hereunder nor to fulfill the indemnification provisions and requirements of this Contract, nor act
in any way to reduce the policy coverage and limits available from the insurer.

P. Changes: Contractor shall make no changes in the work or perform any additional work without the
County’s specific written approval.

Q. Change of Ownership: Contractor agrees that if there is a change or transfer in ownership of Contractor’s
business prior to completion of this Contract, and the County agrees to an assignment of the Contract, the
new owners shall be required under terms of sale or other transfer to assume Contractor’s duties and
obligations contained in this Contract and complete them to the satisfaction of the County.

Contract # 017-18003BC Page 5 of 21



County of Orange Executive Office, Public Finance
General Public Finance Legal Services

County reserves the right to immediately terminate the Contract in the event the County determines that
the assignee is not qualified or is otherwise unacceptable to the County for the provision of services under
the Contract.

R. Force Majeure: Contractor shall not be assessed with liquidated damages or unsatisfactory performance
penalties during any delay beyond the time named for the performance of this Contract caused by any act
of God, war, civil disorder, employment strike or other cause beyond its reasonable control, provided
Contractor gives written notice of the cause of the delay to County within 36 hours of the start of the delay
and Contractor avails himself of any available remedies.

S. Confidentiality: Contractor agrees to maintain the confidentiality of all County and County-related
records and information pursuant to all statutory laws relating to privacy and confidentiality that currently
exist or exist at any time during the term of this Contract. All such records and information shall be
considered confidential and kept confidential by Contractor and Contractor’s staff, agents and employees.

T. Compliance with Laws: Contractor represents and warrants that services to be provided under this
Contract shall fully comply, at Contractor’s expense, with all standards, laws, statutes, restrictions,
ordinances, requirements, and regulations (collectively “laws™), including, but not limited to those issued
by County in its governmental capacity and all other laws applicable to the services at the time services
are provided to and accepted by County. Contractor acknowledges that County is relying on Contractor
to ensure such compliance, and pursuant to the requirements of paragraph “Z” below, Contractor agrees
that it shall defend, indemnify and hold County and County INDEMNITEES harmless from all liability,
damages, costs and expenses arising from or related to a violation of such laws.

U. Intentionally left blank.

V. Severability: If any term, covenant, condition or provision of this Contract is held by a court of competent
jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remainder of the provisions hereof shall remain in
full force and effect and shall in no way be affected, impaired or invalidated thereby.

W. Attorney Fees: In any action or proceeding to enforce or interpret any provision of this Contract, each
party shall bear their own attorney’s fees, costs and expenses.

X. Interpretation: This Contract has been negotiated at arm’s length and between persons sophisticated and
knowledgeable in the matters dealt with in this Contract. In addition, each party had been represented by
experienced and knowledgeable independent legal counsel of their own choosing or has knowingly
declined to seek such counsel despite being encouraged and given the opportunity to do so. Each party
further acknowledges that they have not been influenced to any extent whatsoever in executing this
Contract by any other party hereto or by any person representing them, or both. Accordingly, any rule or
law (including California Civil Code Section 1654) or legal decision that would require interpretation of
any ambiguities in this Contract against the party that has drafted it is not applicable and is waived. The
provisions of this Contract shall be interpreted in a reasonable manner to effect the purpose of the parties
and this Contract.

Y. Employee Eligibility Verification: The Contractor warrants that it fully complies with all Federal and
State statutes and regulations regarding the employment of aliens and others and that all its employees
performing work under this Contract meet the citizenship or alien status requirement set forth in Federal
statutes and regulations. The Contractor shall obtain, from all employees performing work hereunder, all
verification and other documentation of employment eligibility status required by Federal or State statutes
and regulations including, but not limited to, the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, 8 U.S.C.
§1324 et seq., as they currently exist and as they may be hereafter amended. The Contractor shall retain
all such documentation for all covered employees for the period prescribed by the law. The Contractor
shall indemnify, defend with counsel approved in writing by County, and hold harmless, the County, its

Contract 017-18003BC Page 6 of 21



County of Orange Executive Office, Public Finance
General Public Finance Legal Services

agents, officers, and employees from employer sanctions and any other liability which may be assessed
against the Contractor or the County or both in connection with any alleged violation of any Federal or
State statutes or regulations pertaining to the eligibility for employment of any persons performing work
under this Contract.

Z. Indemnification: Contractor agrees to indemnify, defend with counsel approved in writing by County,
and hold County, its elected and appointed officials, officers, employees, agents and those special districts
and agencies which County’s Board of Supervisors acts as the governing Board (“County Indemnitees”)
harmless from any claims, demands or liability of any kind or nature, including but not limited to personal
injury or property damage, arising from or related to the negligent performance of services provided by
Contractor pursuant to this Contract. If judgment is entered against Contractor and County by a court of
competent jurisdiction because of the concurrent active negligence of County or County Indemnitees,
Contractor and County agree that liability will be apportioned as determined by the court. Neither party
shall request a jury apportionment. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this paragraph “Z” shall not apply to
any actions related to the professional services provided by Contractor so long as the professional liability
insurance required by this Contract remains in effect; provided, however, Contractor remains liable to pay
for any liability incurred by the County Indemnities related to the negligent performance of professional
services provided by Contractor under this Contract that are not covered by Contractor’s professional
liability insurance, including any SIR amount.

AA. Audits/Inspections: Contractor agrees to permit the County’s Auditor-Controller or the Auditor-
Controller’s authorized representative (including auditors from a private auditing firm hired by the
County) access during normal working hours to all books, accounts, records, reports, files, financial
records, supporting documentation, including payroll and accounts payable/receivable records, and other
papers or property of Contractor for the purpose of auditing or inspecting any aspect of performance under
this Contract. The inspection and/or audit will be confined to those matters connected with the
performance of the Contract including, but not limited to, the costs of administering the Contract. The
County will provide reasonable notice of such an audit or inspection. The County reserves the right to
audit and verify the Contractor’s records before final payment is made.

Contractor agrees to maintain such records for possible audit for a minimum of three years after final
payment, unless a longer period of records retention is stipulated under this Contract or by law. Contractor
agrees to allow interviews of any employees or others who might reasonably have information related to
such records. Further, Contractor agrees to include a similar right to the County to audit records and
interview staff of any subcontractor related to performance of this Contract.

Should the Contractor cease to exist as a legal entity, the Contractor’s records pertaining to this agreement
shall be forwarded to the County’s project manager.

BB.Contingency of Funds: Contractor acknowledges that funding or portions of funding for this Contract
may be contingent upon state budget approval; receipt of funds from, and/or obligation of funds by, the
state of California to County; and inclusion of sufficient funding for the services hereunder in the budget
approved by County’s Board of Supervisors for each fiscal year covered by this Contract. If such approval,
funding or appropriations are not forthcoming, or are otherwise limited, County may immediately
terminate or modify this Contract without penalty.

CC.Expenditure Limit: The Contractor shall notify the County of Orange assigned Deputy Purchasing Agent
in writing when the expenditures against the Contract reach 75 percent of the dollar limit on the Contract.

The County will not be responsible for any expenditure overruns and will not pay for work exceeding the
dollar limit on the Contract unless a change order to cover those costs has been issued.

Additional Terms and Conditions:

Contract # 017-18003BC Page 7 0f 21



County of Orange Executive Office, Public Finance
General Public Finance Legal Services

L.

Scope of Contract: This Contract specifies the contractual terms and conditions by which the County
will procure general public finance legal services from Contractor as further detailed in the Scope of Work,
identified and incorporated herein by this reference as “Attachment A”.

Term of Contract: The initial term of this Contract is for a three-year term and shall become effective
April 23, 2018 and shall continue through April 22, 2021 unless otherwise terminated as provided herein.
This Contract may be renewed as set forth in paragraph 3 below.

Renewal: This Contract may be renewed upon expiration for two (2) additional one-year terms, upon
mutual agreement of both Parties. County is not obligated to give a reason or notice if it elects not to
renew. Renewal amendments may require approval of the County Board of Supervisors.

Adjustments — Scope of Work: No adjustments made to the Scope of Work will be authorized without
prior written approval of the County assigned Deputy Purchasing Agent.

Breach of Contract: The failure of the Contractor to comply with any of the provisions, covenants or
conditions of this Contract shall be a material breach of this Contract. In such event the County may, and
in addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity, or otherwise specified in this Contract:

a) Terminate the Contract immediately, pursuant to Section K herein;

b) Afford the Contractor written notice of the breach and ten (10) calendar days or such shorter time
that may be specified in this Contract within which to cure the breach;

¢) Discontinue payment to the Contactor for and during the period in which the Contractor is in
breach; and

d) Offset against any monies billed by the Contractor but yet unpaid by the County those monies
disallowed pursuant to the above.

Civil Rights: Contractor attests that services provided shall be in accordance with the provisions of Title
VI and Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of
1973, as amended; the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 as amended; Title II of the Americans with
Disabilities Act of 1990, and other applicable State and federal laws and regulations prohibiting
discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, ethnic group identification, age, religion, marital
status, sex or disability.

Conflict of Interest — Contractor’s Personnel: The Contractor shall exercise reasonable care and
diligence to prevent any actions or conditions that could result in a conflict with the best interests of the
County. This obligation shall apply to the Contractor; the Contractor’s employees, agents, and
subcontractors associated with accomplishing work and services hereunder. The Contractor’s efforts shall
include, but not be limited to establishing precautions to prevent its employees, agents, and subcontractors
from providing or offering gifts, entertainment, payments, loans or other considerations which could be
deemed to influence or appear to influence County staff or elected officers from acting in the best interests
of the County.

Conlflict of Interest — County Personnel: The County of Orange Board of Supervisors policy prohibits
its employees from engaging in activities involving a conflict of interest. The Contractor shall not, during
the period of this Contract, employ any County employee for any purpose.

Project Manager, County: The County shall appoint a Project Manager to act as liaison between the
County and the Contractor during the term of this Contract. The County’s Project Manager shall
coordinate the activities of the County staff assigned to work with the Contractor.

Contract # Page 8 of 21



County of Orange Executive Office, Public Finance
General Public Finance Legal Services
10. Contractor’s Project Manager and Key Personnel: Contractor shall appoint a Project Manager to
direct the Contractor’s efforts in fulfilling Contractor’s obligations under this Contract. This Project
Manager shall be subject to approval by the County and shall not be changed without the written consent
of the County’s Project Manager, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.

The Contractor’s Project Manager shall be assigned to this project for the duration of the Contract and
shall diligently pursue all work and services to meet the project time lines. The County’s Project Manager
shall have the right to require the removal and replacement of the Contractor’s Project Manager from
providing services to the County under this Contract, The County’s Project manager shall notify the
Contractor in writing of such action. The Contractor shall accomplish the removal within five (5) business
days after written notice by the County’s Project Manager. The County’s Project Manager shall review
and approve the appointment of the replacement for the Contractor’s Project Manager. The County is not
required to provide any additional information, reason or rationale in the event it The County is not
required to provide any additional information, reason or rationale in the event it requires the removal of
Contractor’s Project Manager from providing further services under the Contract.

11. Contractor’s Expense: The Contractor will be responsible for all costs related to photo copying,
telephone communications, and fax communications during the performance of work and services under
this Contract. The County will not provide free parking for any service in the County Civic Center. No
reimbursable expenses shall be allowed in this contract without prior written consent by the Public Finance
Director.

12. Reports/Meetings: The Contractor shall develop reports and any other relevant documents necessary to
complete the services and requirements as set forth in this Contract. The County’s Project Manager and
the Contractor’s Project Manager will meet on reasonable notice to discuss the Contractor’s performance
and progress under this Contract. If requested, the Contractor’s Project Manager and other project
personnel shall attend all meetings. The Contractor shall provide such information that is requested by
the County for the purpose of monitoring progress under this Contract.

13. Contractor’s Records: The Contractor shall keep true and accurate accounts, records, books and data
which shall correctly reflect the business transacted by the Contractor in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. These records shall be stored in Orange County for a period of three (3)
years after final payment is received from the County. Storage of records in another county will require
written approval from the County of Orange assigned Deputy Purchasing Agent.

14. Conditions Affecting Work: The Contractor shall be responsible for taking all steps reasonably
necessary to ascertain the nature and location of the work to be performed under this Contract and to know
the general conditions which can affect the work or the cost thereof. Any failure by the Contractor to do
so will not relieve Contractor from responsibility for successfully performing the work without additional
cost to the County. The County assumes no responsibility for any understanding or representations
concerning the nature, location(s) or general conditions made by any of its officers or agents prior to the
execution of this Contract, unless such understanding or representations by the County are expressly stated
in the Contract.

15. Bills and Liens: Contractor shall pay promptly all indebtedness for labor, materials and equipment used
in performance of the work. Contractor shall not permit any lien or charge to attach to the work or the
premises, but if any does so attach, Contractor shall promptly procure its release and, in accordance with
the requirements of paragraph “Z” above, indemnify, defend, and hold County harmless and be responsible
for payment of all costs, damages, penalties and expenses related to or arising from or related thereto.

16. County of Orange Child Support Enforcement: All Contractors are required to comply with the child
support enforcement requirements of the County of Orange. Failure of the Contractor to comply with all
federal, state, and local reporting requirements for child support enforcement or to comply with all
lawfully served Wage and Earnings Assignment Orders and Notices of Assignment shall constitute a

Contract # 017-18003BC Page 9 of 21



County of Orange Executive Office, Public Finance
General Public Finance Legal Services

material breach of the Contract. In order to comply with the child support enforcement requirements of
the County of Orange, all bidders/proposers must furnish to the Contract administrator, the Purchasing
Agent, or the agency/department Deputy Purchasing Agent:

A,

In the case of an individual Contractor, his/her name, date of birth, Social Security
number, and residence address;

In the case of a Contractor doing business in a form other than as an individual, the name,
date of birth, Social Security number, and residence address of each individual who owns
an interest of 10 percent or more in the Contracting entity;

A certification that the Contractor has fully complied with all applicable federal and state
reporting requirements regarding its employees; and

A certification that the Contractor has fully complied with all lawfully served Wage and
Earnings Assignment Orders and Notices of Assignment and will continue to so comply.

Failure to cure such breach within 60 calendar days of notice from the County shall constitute grounds for
termination of the Contract.

17. Data — Title To: All materials, documents, data or information obtained from the County data files or
any County medium furnished to the Contractor in the performance of this Contract will at all times remain
the property of the County. Such data or information may not be used or copied for direct or indirect use
by the Contractor after completion or termination of this Contract without the express written consent of
the County. All materials, documents, data or information, including copies, must be returned to the
County at the end of this Contract.

18. Reprocurement Costs: In case of Contract breach by Contractor, resulting in termination by the County,
the County may procure the goods and/or services from other sources. If the cost for those goods and/or
services is higher than under the terms of the existing Contract, Contractor will be responsible for paying
the County the difference between the Contract cost and the price paid, and the County may deduct this
cost from any unpaid balance due the Contractor. The price paid by the County shall be the prevailing
market price at the time such purchase is made. This is in addition to any other remedies available under
this Contract and under law.

19. Disputes — Contract:
A. The parties shall deal in good faith and attempt to resolve potential disputes informally. If the
dispute concerning a question of fact arising under the terms of this Contract is not disposed of in
a reasonable period of time by the Contractor’s Project Manager and the County‘s Project
Manager, such matter shall be brought to the attention of the County Deputy Purchasing Agent by
way of the following process:

1

Contract # 017-18003BC

The Contractor shall submit to the agency/department assigned Deputy Purchasing Agent
a written demand for a final decision regarding the disposition of any dispute between the
parties arising under, related to, or involving this Contract, unless the County, on its own
initiative, has already rendered such a final decision.

The Contractor’s written demand shall be fully supported by factual information, and, if
such demand involves a cost adjustment to the Contract, the Contractor shall include with
the demand a written statement signed by a senior official indicating that the demand is
made in good faith, that the supporting data are accurate and complete, and that the
amount requested accurately reflects the Contract adjustment for which the Contractor
believes the County is liable.

Page 10 of 21



County of Orange Executive Office, Public Finance
General Public Finance Legal Services
B. Pending the final resolution of any dispute arising under, related to, or involving this Contract, the
Contractor agrees to diligently proceed with the performance of this Contract, including the
delivery of goods and/or provision of services. The Contractor’s failure to diligently proceed shall
be considered a material breach of this Contract.

Any final decision of the County shall be expressly identified as such, shall be in writing, and shall be
signed by the County Deputy Purchasing Agent or their designee. If the County fails to render a decision
within 90 days after receipt of the Contractor’s demand, it shall be deemed a final decision adverse to the
Contractor’s contentions. Nothing in this section shall be construed as affecting the County’s right to
terminate the Contract for cause or termination for convenience as stated in section K herein,

20. Drug-Free Workplace: The Contractor hereby certifies compliance with Government Code Section
8355 in matters relating to providing a drug-free workplace. The Contractor will:

Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation,
possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken
against employees for violations, as required by Government Code Section 8355(a)(1).

2 Establish a drug-free awareness program as required by Government Code Section 8355(a)(2)
to inform employees about all of the following:
a. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
b. The organization’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
c. Any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and
d. Penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.
3 Provide as required by Government Code Section 8355(a)(3) that every employee who works
under this Contract:
a. Will receive a copy of the company’s drug-free policy statement; and
b. Will agree to abide by the terms of the company’s statement as a condition of

employment under this Contract,

Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Contract or
termination of the Contract or both, and the Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future County
contracts if the County determines that any of the following has occurred:

1. The Contractor has made false certification, or
2. The Contractor violates the certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted
above.

21. EDD Independent Contractor Reporting Requirements: Effective January 1, 2001, the County of
Orange is required to file in accordance with subdivision (a) of Section 6041A of the Internal Revenue
Code for services received from a “service provider” to whom the County pays $600 or more or with
whom the County enters into a contract for $600 or more within a single calendar year. The purpose of
this reporting requirement is to increase child support collection by helping to locate parents who are
delinquent in their child support obligations.

The term “service provider” is defined in California Unemployment Insurance Code Section 1088.8,
subparagraph B.2 as “an individual who is not an employee of the service recipient for California purposes
and who received compensation or executes a contract for services performed for that service recipient
within or without the state.” The term is further defined by the California Employment Development
Department to refer specifically to independent Contractors. An independent Contractor is defined as “an
individual who is not an employee of the ... government entity for California purposes and who receives
compensation or executes a contract for services performed for that ... government entity either in or
outside of California.”

Contract # 017-18003BC Page 11 of 21



County of Orange Executive Office, Public Finance

General Public Finance Legal Services
The reporting requirement does not apply to corporations, general partnerships, limited liability
partnerships, and limited liability companies.

Additional information on this reporting requirement can be found at the California Employment
Development Department web site located at http://www.edd.ca.gov/Employer Services.htm

22. Remedies Not Exclusive: The remedies for breach set forth in this Contract are cumulative as to one
another and as to any other provided by law, rather than exclusive; and the expression of certain remedies
in this Contract does not preclude resort by either party to any other remedies provided by law.

23. Errors and Omissions: All reports, files and other documents prepared and submitted by Contractor
shall be complete and shall be carefully checked by the professional(s) identified by Contractor as project
manager and key personnel attached hereto, prior to submission to the County. Contractor agrees that
County review is discretionary and Contractor shall not assume that the County will discover errors and/or
omissions. If the County discovers any errors or omissions prior to approving Contractor’s reports, files
and other written documents, the reports, files or documents will be returned to Contractor for correction.
Should the County or others discover errors or omissions in the reports, files or other written documents
submitted by the Contractor after County approval thereof, County approval of Contractor’s reports, files
or documents shall not be used as a defense by Contractor in any action between the County and
Contractor, and the reports, files or documents will be returned to Contractor for correction.

24. Equal Employment Opportunity: The Contractor shall comply with U.S. Executive Order 11246
entitled, “Equal Employment Opportunity” as amended by Executive Order 11375 and as supplemented
in Department of Labor regulations (41 CFR, Part 60) and applicable state of California regulations as
may now exist or be amended in the future. The Contractor shall not discriminate against any employee
or applicant for employment on the basis of race, color, national origin, ancestry, religion, sex, marital
status, political affiliation or physical or mental condition.

Regarding handicapped persons, the Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant
for employment because of physical or mental handicap in regard to any position for which the employee
or applicant for employment is qualified. The Contractor agrees to provide equal opportunity to
handicapped persons in employment or in advancement in employment or otherwise treat qualified
handicapped individuals without discrimination based upon their physical or mental handicaps in all
employment practices such as the following: employment, upgrading, promotions, transfers, recruitments,
advertising, layoffs, terminations, rate of pay or other forms of compensation, and selection for training,
including apprenticeship. The Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions of Sections 503 and 504
of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, pertaining to prohibition of discrimination against qualified
handicapped persons in all programs and/or activities as detailed in regulations signed by the Secretary of
the Department of Health and Human Services effective June 3, 1977, and found in the Federal Register,
Volume 42, No. 68 dated May 4, 1977, as may now exist or be amended in the future.

Regarding Americans with disabilities, Contractor agrees to comply with applicable provisions of Title 1
of the Americans with Disabilities Act enacted in 1990 as may now exist or be amended in the future.

25. News/Information Release: The Contractor agrees that it will not issue any news releases in connection
with either the award of this Contract or any subsequent amendment of or effort under this Contract
without first obtaining review and written approval of said news releases from the County through the
County’s Project Manager.

26. Notices: Any and all notices, requests demands and other communications contemplated, called for,
permitted, or required to be given hereunder shall be in writing with a copy provided to the assigned
Deputy Purchasing Agent (DPA), except through the course of the parties’ project managers’ routine
exchange of information and cooperation during the terms of the work and services. Amny written
communications shall be deemed to have been duly given upon actual in-person delivery, if delivery is by

Contract # 017-18003BC Page 12 of 21



County of Orange Executive Office, Public Finance
General Public Finance Legal Services

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

direct hand, or upon delivery on the actual day of receipt or no greater than four (4) calendar days after
being mailed by US certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, whichever
occurs first. The date of mailing shall count as the first day. All communications shall be addressed to
the appropriate party at the address stated herein or such other address as the parties hereto may designate
by written notice from time to time in the manner aforesaid.

Contractor:; Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth
660 Newport Center Drive, Suite 1600
Newport Beach, CA 92660

County: County Executive Office/Public Finance Division
Attn: Public Finance Director
333 W. Santa Ana Blvd., 39 Floor
Santa Ana, CA 92701

Assigned DPA: County Executive Office/Public Finance Division
333 W. Santa Ana Blvd., 34 Floor
Santa Ana, CA 92701

Precedence: The Contract documents consist of this Contract and its exhibits and attachments. In the
event of a conflict between or among the Contract documents, the order of precedence shall be the
provisions of the main body of this Contract, i.e., those provisions set forth in the recitals and articles of
this Contract, and then the exhibits and attachments.

Termination — Orderly: After receipt of a termination notice from the County of Orange, the Contractor
may submit to the County a termination claim, if applicable. Such claim shall be submitted promptly, but
in no event later than 60 days from the effective date of the termination, unless one or more extensions in
writing are granted by the County upon written request of the Contractor. Upon termination County agrees
to pay the Contractor for all services performed prior to termination which meet the requirements of the
Contract, provided, however, that such compensation combined with previously paid compensation shall
not exceed the total compensation set forth in the Contract. Upon termination or other expiration of this
Contract, each party shall promptly return to the other party all papers, materials, and other properties of
the other held by each for purposes of performance of the Contract.

Usage: No guarantee is given by the County to the Contractor regarding usage of this Contract. Usage
figures, if provided, are approximations. The Contractor agrees to supply services and/or commodities
requested, as needed by the County of Orange, at rates/prices listed in the Contract, regardless of quantity
requested.

Headings: The various headings and numbers herein, the grouping of provisions of this Contract into
separate clauses and paragraphs, and the organization hereof are for the purpose of convenience only and
shall not limit or otherwise affect the meaning hereof.

Ownership of Documents: The County has permanent ownership of all directly connected and derivative
materials produced under this Contract by the Contractor. All documents, reports and other incidental or
derivative work or materials furnished hereunder shall become and remain the sole property of the County
and may be used by the County as it may require without additional cost to the County. None of the
documents, reports and other incidental or derivative work or furnished materials shall be used by the
Contractor without the express written consent of the County.

Contract # 017-18003BC Page 13 of 21



County of Orange Executive Office, Public Finance
General Public Finance Legal Services
32. Compliance with Gift and Political Contribution Ban: By executing this Contract, Contractor
covenants to the County that it has complied in all respects with the “Ban on Political Contributions and
Gifts” provisions of Article V of the County of Orange, Board of Supervisors, Policies and Procedures for
Consideration and Approval of Proposed Public Financings.

33. Publication: No copies of schedules, written documents, and computer based data, photographs, maps
or graphs, resulting from performance or prepared in connection with this Contract, are to be released by
Contractor and/or anyone acting under the supervision of Contractor to any person, partnership, company,
corporation, or agency, without prior written approval by the County, except as necessary for the
performance of the services of this Contract. All press releases, including graphic display information to
be published in newspapers, magazines, etc., are to be administered only by the County unless otherwise
agreed to by both Parties.

34, Gratuities: The Contractor warrants that no gratuities, in the form of entertainment, gifts or otherwise,
were offered or given by the Contractor or any agent or representative of the Contractor to any officer or
employee of the County with a view toward securing the Contract or securing favorable treatment with
respect to any determinations concerning the performance of the Contract. For breach or violation of this
warranty, the County shall have the right to terminate the Contract, either in whole or in part, and any loss
or damage sustained by the County in procuring on the open market any goods or services which the
Contractor agreed to supply shall be borne and paid for by the Contractor. The rights and remedies of the
County provided in the clause shall not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies
provided by law or under the Contract.

35. Follow-On Work - Services Contract: No person, firm, subsidiary or subcontractor of a firm that has
been awarded a consulting services contract or a contract which includes a consulting component may be
awarded a Contract for the performance of services, the purchase of goods or supplies, or the provision of
any other related action which arises from or can reasonably be deemed an end-product of work performed
under the initial consulting to consulting-related Contract.

36. Subcontracting: No performance of this Contract or any portion thereof may be subcontracted by the
Contractor without the express written consent of the County. Any attempt by the Contractor to
subcontract any performance of this Contract without the express written consent of the County shall be
invalid and shall constitute a breach of this Contract,

In the event that the Contractor is authorized by the County to subcontract, this Contract shall take
precedence over the terms of the Contract between Contractor and subcontractor, and shall incorporate by
reference the terms of this Contract. The County shall look to the Contractor for performance and
indemnification and not deal directly with any subcontractor.  All work performed by a subcontractor
must meet the approval of the County of Orange.

37. Nondiscrimination — Statement of Compliance: The Contractor’s signature affixed hereon and dated
shall constitute a certification under penalty of perjury under the laws of the state of California that the
Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements of
Government Code Section 12900 (a-f) and Title 2, California Code of Regulations, Sections 11102 and
11103.

38. Order Dates: Orders may be placed during the term of the Contract even if delivery may not be made

until after the term of the Contract. The Contractor must clearly identify the order date on all invoices to
County and the order date must precede the expiration date of the Contract.

Contract # 017-18003BC Page 14 of 21



County of Orange Executive Office, Public Finance
General Public Finance Legal Services

39. Statement of Economic Interests - Form 700 Requirement: The contractor must comply with
California state law and regulations regarding conflicts of interest. The Fair Political Practices
Commission (“FPPC”) requires employees of the contractor who provide services to the County under
this contract to complete an initial and annual Statement of Economic Interests (“Form 700”).

Contract # 017-18003BC Page 15 of 21



County of Orange Executive Office, Public Finance
General Public Finance Legal Services

Signature Page

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Contract on the date following their respective
signatures.

Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth, a Professional Corporation*

Robert J. Whalen  Vice President 3/14/18
Signature Name Title Date
e W. Feuchter Vice President asurer 5 18
Signature Name Title Date

COUNTY OF ORANGE
A political subdivision of the State of California
COUNTY AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE:

Luzdnne Wcter  Public Ditechr -lo-1

Name Title Date

APPROVED AS TO FORM:
County Counsel

By = e
Deputy

Date

* If the contracting party is a corporation, (2) two signatures are required: one (1) signature by the Chairman of
the Board, the President or any Vice President; and one (1) signature by the Secretary, any Assistant Secretary,
the Chief Financial Officer or any Assistant Treasurer. The signature of one person alone is sufficient to bind a
corporation, as long as he or she holds corporate offices in each of the two categories described above. For
County purposes, proof of such dual office holding will be satisfied by having the individual sign the instrument
twice, each time indicating his or her office that qualifies under the above described provision. In the
alternative, a single corporate signature is acceptable when accompanied by a corporate resolution demonstrating
the legal authority of the signee to bind the corporation.

Contract # 017-18003BC Page 16 of 21



County of Orange Executive Office, Public Finance
General Public Finance Legal Services

ATTACHMENT A

SCOPE OF WORK

1. Responding to questions from the County, interpreting outstanding documents and agreements,
federal tax law, regulations and agreements pertaining to County disclosure obligations, reviewing
proposals generated by or submitted to the County, and providing other general or specific advice to
the County, in each case as related to outstanding or proposed debt obligations of the County or a
related entity.

2. Representing the County or related entity in connection with any agreement securing or otherwise
related to debt obligations, validation action, reverse validation action, investment agreement, IRS
audit, SEC inquiry, financial restructuring, workout, participant bankruptcy or similar matter.

3. Customary bond counsel and/or disclosure counsel and or tax counsel services in connection with
particular financings of the County or a related entity, which may include, (i) consultation with
representatives of the County, County Counsel, the County’s municipal advisor and underwriters and
others, regarding proposed financing; (ii) preparation of certain documents to be approved, adopted
or executed by the County; (iii) validation action if necessary; (iv) attendance at Public Finance
Advisory Committee (“PFAC”), Board of Supervisors, and/or working group meetings; (V)
coordination of bond closings; (vi) rendering customary legal opinions; and (vii) preparation of
closing transcripts.

4. Any additional services related to matters not otherwise covered by the Contract and specifically
requested in writing by the Public Finance Director.

Contract # 017-18003BC Page 17 of 21



County of Orange Executive Office, Public Finance
General Public Finance Legal Services

ATTACHMENT B
COMPENSATION/PAYMENT

Compensation: This is a Contract between the County and Contractor for general public finance legal
services as set forth in Attachment A, “Scope of Work”.

The Contractor agrees to accept the specified compensation as set forth in this Contract as full payment for
performing all services and furnishing all staffing and materials required, for any reasonably unforeseen
difficulties which may arise or be encountered in the execution of the services until acceptance, for risks
connected with the services, and for performance by the Contractor of all its duties and obligations hereunder.
The Contractor shall only be compensated as set forth herein for work performed in accordance with the Scope
of Work. The County shall have no obligation to pay any sum in excess of the fixed rates specified herein
unless authorized by amendment in accordance with Articles C of the County Contract Terms and
Conditions.

Payment Schedule: County shall pay Contractor for services in accordance to the hourly rates as set forth
below for services provided as described in Attachment A — Scope of Work. Fees for services described in
Attachment A — Scope of Work shall not exceed $150,000 in any contract year.

Hourly Rates
Title Hourly Rate
Partners $ 500
Attorney $ 340
Paralegal $130

In addition to the hourly rates set forth above, travel-related expenses (such as airfare or lodging) may be
reimbursed at the discretion of the County. All travel-related expenses must be negotiated with the Public
Finance Director prior to engagement of services.

The amounts paid to the Contractor under this paragraph shall constitute payment in full for all services
rendered under this Contract.

Billable Hours — Partners Exception: Notwithstanding any provision of this Contract to the Contrary, unless
Attorneys receive prior written approval of the Public Finance Director, the County will not compensate
Attorneys for the attendance or participation of more than one Attorney (including Attorneys’ staff) in any
meeting, conference call, deposition, court appearance or similar matter. In the event more than one Attorney
attends any matter, the County will compensate Attorneys at the hourly rate for the most senior Attorney
present. In addition, unless Attorneys receive prior written approval of the Public Finance Director, the County
will not pay any Attorney hourly rate for time spent traveling.

Price Increase/Decreases: No price increases will be permitted during the first period of the price agreement.
The County requires documented proof of cost increases on Contracts prior to any price adjustment. A
minimum of 30-days advance notice in writing is required to secure such adjustment. No retroactive price
adjustments will be considered. All price decreases will automatically be extended to the County of Orange.
The County may enforce, negotiate, or cancel escalating price Contracts or take any other action it deems
appropriate, as it sees fit. The net dollar amount of profit will remain firm during the period of the Contract.
Adjustments increasing the Contractor’s profit will not be allowed.

Contract # 017-18003BC Page 18 of 21



County of Orange Executive Office, Public Finance
General Public Finance Legal Services

5.

Firm Discount and Pricing Structure: Contractor guarantees that prices quoted are equal to or less than
prices quoted to any other local, State or Federal government entity for services of equal or lesser scope.
Contractor agrees that no price increases shall be passed along to the County du ring the term of this Contract
not otherwise specified and provided for within this Contract.

Contractor’s Expense: The Contractor will be responsible for all costs related to photo copying, telephone
communications, and fax communications during the performance of work and services under this Contract.
The County will not provide free parking for any service in the County Civic Center. No reimbursable
expenses shall be allowed in this contract without prior written consent by the Public Finance Director.

7. Payment Terms — Payment in Arrears: Invoices are to be submitted within 30 days from the date Contractor

completes deliverables as defined in Attachment A - Scope of Work. Contractor shall reference Contract
number and bond issue on invoice. Payment will be net 30 days after receipt, and approval, by County of an
invoice in a format acceptable to the County and verified and approved by the agency/department and subject
to routine processing requirements. The responsibility for providing an acceptable invoice rests with the
Contractor.

Billing shall cover services and/or goods not previously invoiced. The Contractor shall reimburse the County
of Orange for any monies paid to the Contractor for goods or services not provided or when goods or services
do not meet the Contract requirements.

Payments made by the County shall not preclude the right of the County from thereafter disputing any items
or services involved or billed under this Contract and shall not be construed as acceptance of any part of the
goods or services.

Taxpayer ID Number: The Contractor shall include its taxpayer ID number on all invoices submitted to the
County for payment to ensure compliance with IRS requirements and to expedite payment processing.

Payment — Invoicing Instructions: The Contractor will provide an invoice on the Contractor’s letterhead
for services rendered. Each invoice shall be reviewed by County staff prior to payment to ensure that the
billing is consistent with the following information:

Contractor’s name and address

Contractor’s remittance address, if different from 1 above

Contractor’s Taxpayer ID Number

Name of County Agency/Department

Service address

Contract number

Date of invoice

Description of fees/service

Dates service was provided

Specify the specific bond issue

Sales tax, if applicable

Total

ERET RS e o

The County’s Contract Administrator, or designee, is responsible for approval of invoices and subsequent
submittal of invoices to the Auditor-Controller for processing of payment. The responsibility for providing an
acceptable invoice to the County for payment rests with the Contractor. Incomplete or incorrect invoices are
not acceptable and will be returned to the Contractor for correction.

Contract # 017-18003BC Page 19 of 21



County of Orange Executive Office, Public Finance
General Public Finance Legal Services

Invoices and support documentation are to be forwarded to:
County of Orange County Executive Office
333 W. Santa Ana Blvd., 3" Floor
Santa Ana, CA 92701
Attn: Public Finance Director

Or Email: PFAcctg@ocgov.com

Contract # 017-18003BC Page 20 of 21



County of Orange Executive Office, Public Finance
General Public Finance Legal Services

Name
Robert J. Whalen
Carol L. Lew
Lawrence K. Chan

Alternate Staff

Name
Brian P. Forbath
Brad R. Neal
Darren C. McHugh
Kevin Civale
Paul Glassman

ATTACHMENT C

STAFFING PLAN

Classification/Designation

Shareholder
Shareholder
Associate

Classification/Designation

Shareholder
Shareholder
Shareholder
Shareholder
Shareholder

Contractor understands that the individuals represented as assigned to the Contract must remain working
on the Contract throughout the duration of the Contract unless otherwise requested or approved by County.
Substitution of Contractor’s Key Personnel shall be allowed only with prior written approval of County’s

Project Manager.

Contractor may reserve the right to involve other Contractor personnel, as their services are required. The
specific individuals will be assigned based on the need and timing of the service/classification required.
Assignment of additional key personnel shall be subject to County written approval. County reserves the
right to have any of Contractor personnel removed from providing services to County under this Contract.
County is not required to provide any reason for the request for removal of any Contractor personnel.

Contract # 017-18003BC

Page 21 of 21



AGREEMENT NO. 13-002BC
FOR GENERAL PUBLIC FINANCE LEGAL SERVICES

e legal services (this “Agreement”) is made and entered
into th by and between the County of Orange, California, a
politic d existing pursuant to the Constitution and laws of the State of
California (the “County”) and Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth, a Professional Corporation
(“Stradling™).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, from time-to-time the County requires public finance legal services with
respect to ongoing financing issues not covered by any specific contract; and

WHEREAS, Stradling is ready, willing and able to provide public finance legal services
to the County;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, and of the mutual covenants,
terms and conditions herein contained, the parties agree as follows:

Section 1. Engagement of Stradling. The County engages the services of Stradling as
an independent contractor to provide public finance legal services in financial matters related to
the County, as more fully described below. Stradling is willing and able to perform such services
for and on behalf of the County. It is understood that Robert Whalen, E. Kurt Yeager, Brian
Forbath and Carol Lew shall be the attorneys of Stradling principally responsible for performing
the services described herein. Through the aforementioned persons and such other Stradling
attorneys and staff as are needed to carry out the responsibilities of Stradling under this
Agreement, Stradling shall provide the following professional services if and as requested by the
Contract Administrator:

A. Responding to questions from the County, interpreting outstanding documents and
agreements, federal tax law, regulations and agreements pertaining to County disclosure
obligations, reviewing proposals generated by or submitted to the County, and providing other
general or specific advice to the County, in each case as related to outstanding or proposed debt
obligations of the County or a related entity.

B. Representing the County or related entity in connection with any agreement
securing or otherwise related to debt obligations, validation action, reverse validation action,
swap, investment agreement, IRS audit, SEC inquiry, financial restructuring, workout, participant
bankruptcy or similar matter.

C. Customary bond counsel and/or disclosure counsel and/or tax counsel services in
connection with particular financings of the County or a related entity, which may include
(1) consultation with representatives of the County, County Counsel, the County’s financial
advisor and underwriters, and others, regarding the proposed financing; (ii) preparation of certain



of the documents to be approved, adopted or executed by the County (which in the case of
disclosure counsel services may include the official statement or other disclosure document);
(iii) validation action if necessary; (iv) attendance at PFAC or Board of Supervisors or working
group meetings; (v) coordination of the closing; (vi) rendering customary legal opinions; and
(vii) preparation of closing transcripts, all as deemed by Stradling to be appropriate to the matter
It is mutually understood that all potential financings will be subject to future approvals by
PFAC and the Board of Supervisors.

D. Any additional services related to matters not otherwise covered by the Agreement
and specifically requested in writing by the Contract Administrator.

Stradling and County agree that the County has County Counsel to render general day-to-
day and ongoing legal services. Stradling shall circulate documents to, and coordinate its service
with, County Counsel to the extent requested by the County or County Counsel.

Section 2. Term. This Agreement shall be effective as of the date first written above and
shall continue in full force and effect until By mutual written agreement
between the Contract Administrator and S ement may be extended for two (2)
years; provided, however, that none of the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be
amended or modified in any way. Notwithstanding the foregoing, either party may terminate this
Agreement at any time either in whole or in part upon 30 days’ written notice to the other party
regarding such termination.

Section 3. Compensation of Stradling.

A. Stradling will be paid based on the hourly rates set forth in the attached Hourly
Fee Schedule plus expenses (other than general interpretive services related to any documents
drafted by Stradling pursuant to separate contract or pursuant to this Agreement, a reasonable
amount of which interpretive services shall be provided to the County at no additional charge).
In addition Stradling will be paid its costs and expenses incurred in connection with the services
provided. Fees and expenses for the services described in Section 1 (except Subsection C) shall
not exceed $75,000 in any contract year.

B. Fees and expenses for the services described in Section 1 (except Subsection C)
shall be paid periodically as submitted by Stradling, but no more frequently than monthly or less
frequently than annually; and for Subsection C services shall be payable upon completion of such
services with respect to each financing or upon earlier termination of intention to proceed with
the financing.

C. For tax allocation bond refundings, instead of an hourly rate based fee, Stradling’s
fee, inclusive of expenses (except out of town travel) will be $75,000 for bond counsel,
disclosure counsel, and tax counsel services assuming a public sale. The bond counsel fee for a
private placement transaction will be $45,000, this includes a tax opinion if rendered at closing.
If the tax opinion is rendered after closing, then the fee for the tax opinion will be based on
Stradling’s hourly rates set forth in the attached Hourly Fee Schedule. At any time, the County
may request Stradling to convert its hourly rate based fee with respect to any financing or other



matter covered by this Agreement to a fixed fee acceptable to the County. If no fixed fee can be
agreed to, the fee will remain based on hourly rates.

D. All fees and expenses are non-contingent and, in the event of termination of this
Agreement or any of the services described in Section 1 prior to completion for payment as
above, fees for services performed to that point will be based on the hourly rates set forth in the
attached Hourly Fee Schedule (plus expenses).

Section 4. Inveicing and Payment. Stradling shall submit to the Contract Administrator
invoices in acceptable detail and format for services rendered, including any supporting
documentation as may be requested by the Contract Administrator or County Auditor-Controller.
Invoices must reference this Agreement and must clearly specify the services performed. Each
invoice shall be reviewed by County staff prior to payment to ensure that the billing is consistent
with the compensation provisions of this Agreement. County will pay Stradling within the
normal processing schedule of the County Auditor-Controller’s Accounts Payable Section or
sooner.

Section 5. Contract Administration. For the purpose of this Agreement, the County
Public Finance Manager or her designee shall act as the Contract Administrator. The Contract
Administrator will provide overall coordination and guidance of the services to be performed
herein and will address policy issues as necessary and appropriate.

Section 6. Standards of Work. Stradling agrees that the performance of work and
services pursuant to the requirements of this Agreement shall conform to highest professional
standards as exist in Stradling’s profession, industry or field of practice.

Section 7. Errors and Omissions. All work submitted by Stradling shall be completed
and shall be carefully checked prior to submission. Stradling understands that the County’s
examination of Stradling’s work product is discretionary and Stradling shall not assume that the
County will discover errors and/or omissions. If the County discovers any errors or omissions,
Stradling’s work may be returned to Stradling for correction, which work shall be corrected
without additional cost to the County. Should the County or others discover errors or omissions
in the work submitted by Stradling after the County’s acceptance thereof, the County’s approval
of Stradling’s work shall not be a defense by Stradling.

Section 8. Conflict of Interest. Stradling shall not utilize in the performance of this
Agreement any formerly employed person of any of the County agencies or departments if that
person was engaged in any negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangement, or any part of the
decision-making process relevant to this Agreement unless otherwise approved in writing by the
Contract Administrator. This prohibition shall apply for a two-year period beginning on the date
the person terminated County service.

Stradling shall not utilize in the performance of this Agreement any County employee
unless such employment is required as a condition of the employee’s regular employment with



the County. An employee of the County is defined to be any person holding a permanent or
temporary position with the County. Stradling shall not employ or negotiate to employ any
County employee(s) who have been or are involved in administration or performance of this
Agreement, unless otherwise approved in writing by the Contract Administrator.

It is the policy of the Orange County Board of Supervisors, on behalf of the County and
all other governmental entities of which it is the governing board, to prohibit the employment by
any law firm adverse to the County while simultaneously being employed by the County, unless
the board is advised of, and gives specific consent to, such adverse employment.

Any law firm, responding to a request for proposal or contract offer, shall disclose all
present and contemplated employment which is or may be adverse to the County.

Any law firm, which has been retained by the County which desires employment which is
or may be adverse to the County, shall transmit a statement of such desire to the County Counsel
prior to undertaking such employment. The statement shall include a description of the
employment and the reasons, if any, why the County should consent. The County Counsel will
forward the request to the Board of Supervisors with recommendation for action.

If the Board of Supervisors declines to consent to the employment, the law firm shall
decline any such employment or shall not represent the County. The authority to give consent of
the County is not delegated to any officer or employee of the County.

The County recognizes that this policy may exceed the Rules of Professional Conduct 4-
101 and 5-102 of the State Bar of California. Where applicable, law firms employed by the
County shall comply with such Rules in securing necessary consent from their other clients.

Specifically, and in addition, a law firm employed as bond counsel cannot represent, in
the bond issue or any other matter, any other participant in the bond issue without specific
consent of the Board.

County acknowledges that Stradling regularly performs legal services for many private
and public entities in connection with a wide variety of matters. For example, Stradling has
represented, is representing, or may in the future represent other public entities, underwriters,
trustees, rating agencies, insurers, credit enhancement and liquidity providers, lenders, investors,
financial and other consultants/advisors, accountants, investment or swap providers/brokers, and
others who may have a role or interest in the matter(s) described in Section 1 of this Agreement,
or that may be involved with or adverse to County, or a related entity in these or some other
matters. Given the role of Stradling described in Section 1, the County acknowledges that no
conflict of interest exists and waives any conflict of interest that might appear actually or
potentially to exist, by virtue of this Agreement or any such other attorney-client relationship that
Stradling may have had, have or enter into, and County specifically consents to any and all such
relationships.



Section 9. Compliance with Gift and Political Contribution Ban. By executing this
Agreement, Stradling covenants to the County that it has complied, and will comply during the
term of this Agreement, in all respects with the “Ban on Political Contributions and Gifts”
provisions of Article V of the County of Orange, Board of Supervisors, Policies and Procedures
for Consideration and Approval of Proposed Public Financings.

Section 10. Confidentiality of Work. All work performed by Stradling, including but not
limited to all drafts, data, correspondence, proposals, reports and estimates compiled or
composed by Stradling pursuant to this Agreement, but expressly excluding all documents, data,
reports or correspondence typically circulated among the working group with respect to any
financing, or any matter required to be disclosed pursuant to judicial process or California or
federal law (including, but not limited to federal securities laws), is for the sole use of the County
and shall be confidential and not released to any third party without prior written consent of the
Contract Administrator.

Section 11. Independence of Stradling. Stradling and the agents and employees of
Stradling, in performance of this Agreement, shall act in an independent capacity and not as
employees, officers or agents of the County.

Section 12. Subcontracts. Stradling is responsible for all requirements under this
Agreement even though the requirements are carried out pursuant to subcontract. All Agreement
requirements apply to subcontractors. All proposed subcontracts must be filed with, and
approved by the Contract Administrator prior to execution of any agreement with the
subcontractor.

Stradling shall submit a listing which identifies the name of the subcontractor, the method
by which the subcontractor was selected, and the total funding to be paid to the subcontractor. If
other than the lowest bidder or a sole-source provider is selected, all documents used in
subcontractor selection must be presented in writing to the Contract Administrator for prior
approval before awarding any contract. The Contract Administrator reserves the right to
disapprove any subcontractor.

Section 13. News Releases. Stradling agrees to submit to the Contract Administrator,
prior to release, copies of news releases related to this Agreement. County reserves the right to
modify or deny the release of such news releases.

Section 14. Examination of Accounts, Audit and Records. Stradling’s records relating
to services provided under this Agreement shall be subject at all reasonable times to inspection,
audit and reproduction by the County or any of its duly authorized representatives. Stradling
shall preserve and make available records (I) for a period of three years from the date of final
payment under this Agreement and (II) for such longer period, if any, as is required by
subsections A and B below:




A. If this Agreement is completely or partially terminated, the records relating to the
work terminated shall be preserved and made available for a period of three years
from the date of any termination.

B. If any litigation, claim, negotiation, audit, or other action involving the records has
been started before the expiration of the three year period, the records shall be
retained until completion of the action and resolution of all issues which arise
from it, or until the end of the regular three year period, whichever is later.

Section 15. Ownership of Records. All work-product, records, and materials relating to
this Agreement shall be the sole and exclusive property of County, as the work is completed or
otherwise upon termination of this Agreement. Stradling shall deliver to the Contract
Administrator all copies of any and all materials pertaining to this Agreement.

Section 16. Name Change. Stradling shall provide written notice to the Contract
Administrator at least thirty (30) days prior to any changes to Stradling’s current legal name, if
practicable, but in any event, not later than the date of any such change. The Contract
Administrator shall be provided with all pertinent information relating thereto which is
requested.

Section 17. Changes in Staff. The Contract Administrator has the reasonable right to
approve or disapprove any proposed changes in Stradling’s staff from the individuals named in
this Agreement. The Contract Administrator shall be provided with a resume of any proposed
substitute and shall be given the opportunity to interview that person prior to his or her decision
to approve or disapprove.

Section 18. Child Support Compliance. Unless provided contemporaneously with its
execution of this Agreement, Stradling agrees to furnish to the Contract Administrator within
thirty (30) days of this Agreement’s effective date:

A. The name, date of birth, Social Security number, and residence address of each
individual who owns an interest of ten percent (10%) or more in Stradling;

B. A certification that Stradling has fully complied with all applicable federal and
state reporting requirements regarding its employees;

C. A certification that Stradling has fully complied with all lawfully served Wage
and Earnings Assignment Orders and Notices of Assignment, and will continue to so comply.

The failure of Stradling to timely submit the data or certifications required by Subsections
A, B or C, or to comply with all federal and state employee reporting requirements for child
support enforcement or to comply with all lawfully served Wage and Earnings Assignment
Orders and Notices of Assignment shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement, and
failure to cure such breach within sixty (60) calendar days of notice from the County shall
constitute grounds for termination of this Agreement.



It is expressly understood that this data will be transmitted to governmental agencies
charged with the establishment and enforcement of child support orders, and for no other
purpose.

The Contract Administrator, with the concurrence of the County Purchasing Agent, may
waive the requirements of this provision, or any part thereof.

The Contract Administrator shall forthwith transmit data received from Stradling under
the provisions of this Section to the Orange County District Attorney, and shall not use or
disclose the data for any other purpose.

Section 19. Insurance. Prior to the provision of services under this Agreement,
Stradling agrees to purchase all required insurance at Stradling’s expense and to deposit with the
County Certificates of Insurance, including all endorsements required herein, necessary to satisfy
the County that the insurance provisions of this Agreement have been complied with and to keep
such insurance coverage and the certificates therefore on deposit with the County during the
entire term of this Agreement. In addition, all subcontractors performing work on behalf of
Stradling pursuant to this Agreement shall obtain insurance subject to the same terms and
conditions as set forth herein for Stradling.

All insurance policies required by this Agreement shall declare any deductible or self-
insured retention (SIR) in an amount in excess of $25,000 ($5,000 for automobile liability),
which shall specifically be approved by the County Executive Office (CEO)/Office of Risk
Management. Stradling shall be responsible for reimbursement of any deductible to the insurer
Any self-insured retentions (SIRs) or deductibles shall be clearly stated on the Certificate of
Insurance.

If Stradling fails to maintain insurance acceptable to the County for the full term of this
Agreement, the County may terminate this Agreement.

Qualified Insurer

The policy or policies of insurance must be issued by an insurer licensed to do business in
the state of California (California Admitted Carrier).

Minimum insurance company ratings as determined by the most current edition of the
Best's Key Rating Guide/Property-Casualty/United States or ambest.com shall be A- (Secure
Best's Rating) and VIII (Financial Size Category).

If the carrier is a non-admitted carrier in the state of California, CEQ/Office of Risk
Management retains the right to approve or reject carrier after a review of the company's
performance and financial ratings.



The policy or policies of insurance maintained by Stradling shall provide the minimum
limits and coverage as set forth below:

Coverage Minimum Limits
Commercial General Liability with broad form  $1,000,000 combined single limit per
property damage and contractual liability occurrence

$2,000,000 aggregate

Automobile Liability including coverage for $1,000,000 combined single limit per
owned, non-owned and hired vehicles occurrence
Workers' Compensation Statutory
Employers' Liability Insurance $1,000,000 per occurrence
Professional Liability Insurance $1,000,000 per claims made or per occurrence

All liability insurance, except Professional Liability, required by this Agreement shall be
at least $1,000,000 combined single limit per occurrence. Professional Liability may also be
provided on a “Claims Made” basis. The minimum aggregate limit for the Commercial General
Liability policy shall be $2,000,000.

The County of Orange shall be added as an additional insured on all insurance policies
required by this Agreement with respect to work done by Stradling under the terms of this
Agreement (except Workers' Compensation/Employers' Liability and Professional Liability). An
additional insured endorsement evidencing that the County of Orange is an additional insured
shall accompany the Certificate of Insurance.

All insurance policies required by this Agreement shall be primary insurance, and any
insurance maintained by the County of Orange shall be excess and non-contributing with
insurance provided by these policies. An endorsement evidencing that the Stradling's insurance
is primary and non-contributing shall specifically accompany the Certificate of Insurance for the
Commercial General Liability.

All insurance policies required by this Agreement shall give the County of Orange 30
days notice in the event of cancellation. This shall be evidenced by an endorsement separate
from the Certificate of Insurance. In addition, the cancellation clause must include language as
follows. which edits the pre-printed ACORD certificate:

All insurance policies required by this contract shall give the County of Orange 30 days
notice in the event of cancellation and 10 days notice for non-payment of premium. This shall be
evidenced by policy provisions or an endorsement separate from the Certificate of Insurance.

All insurance policies required by this Agreement shall waive all rights of subrogation
against the County of Orange and members of the Board of Supervisors, its elected and appointed



officials, officers, agents and employees when acting within the scope of their appointment or
employment.

If Stradling's Professional Liability policy is a "claims made" policy, Stradling shall agree
to maintain professional liability coverage for two years following completion of this Agreement.

The Commercial General Liability policy shall contain a severability of interests clause.

Stradling is aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the California Labor Code which
requires every employer to be insured against liability for Workers' Compensation or be self-
insured in accordance with provisions of that code. Stradling will comply with such provisions
and shall furnish the County satisfactory evidence that Stradling has secured, for the period of
this Agreement, statutory Workers' Compensation insurance and Employers' Liability insurance
with minimum limits of $1,000,000 per occurrence.

Insurance certificates should be forwarded to the County Executive Office Public Finance
Manager. ‘

County expressly retains the right to require Stradling to increase or decrease insurance of
any of the above insurance types throughout the term of this Agreement. Any increase or
decrease in insurance will be as deemed by County of Orange Risk Manager as appropriate to
adequately protect County.

County shall notify Stradling in writing of changes in the insurance requirements. If
Stradling does not deposit copies of acceptable certificates of insurance and endorsements with
County incorporating such changes within thirty (30) days of receipt of such notice, this
Agreement may be in breach without further notice to Stradling, and County shall be entitled to
all legal remedies.

Section 20.  Employee Eligibility Verification. Stradling warrants that it fully
complies with all Federal and State statutes and regulations regarding the employment of aliens
and others and, to the best of its knowledge, that all its employees performing work under this
Contract meet the citizenship or alien status requirement set forth in Federal statutes and
regulations. Stradling shall obtain, from all employees performing work hereunder, all
verification and other documentation of employment eligibility status required by Federal or
State statutes and regulations including, but not limited to, the Immigration Reform and Control
Act of 1986, 8 U.S.C. §1324 et seq., as they currently exist and as they may be hereafter
amended. Stradling shall retain all such documentation for all covered employees for the period
prescribed by the law.

Section 21. Notices. Any and all notices between the County and Stradling provided for
or permitted under this Agreement or by law shall be in writing and shall be deemed duly given
when personally delivered to one of the parties or in lieu of such personal service, when
deposited in the United States mail, postage prepaid, addressed to such party at the following
address:




County of Orange

10 Civic Center Plaza, 3rd Floor
Santa Ana, CA 92701-4062
Attention: Public Finance Manager

Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth

660 Newport Center Drive, Suite 1600
Newport Beach, CA 92660

Attention: Robert J. Whalen Esq.
Telephone: (949) 725-4166

Section 22. Governing Law, Venue and Entire Agreement. This Agreement has been
negotiated and executed in the State of California and shall be governed by and construed under
the laws of the State of California. In the event of any legal action to enforce or interpret this
Agreement, the sole and exclusive venue shall be a court of competent jurisdiction located in
Orange County, California, and the parties hereto agree to and do hereby submit to the
jurisdiction of such court, withstanding Code of Civil Procedure Section 394.

The parties specifically agree that by entering into and performing under this Agreement,
Stradling shall be deemed to be doing business within Orange County within the meaning of
Code of Civil Procedure Section 394 from this Agreement’s effective date through the expiration
of any applicable limitations period. Furthermore, the parties have specifically agreed, as part of
the consideration given and received for entering into this Agreement, to waive any and all rights
to request that an action be transferred for trial to another county under Code of Civil Procedure
Section 394.

Section 23. Amendment or Modifications. No amendment, modification or other
alteration of this Agreement shall be valid unless in writing and signed by the parties hereto.

Section 24. Severability. In the event that any provision herein contained is held to be
invalid, void, or illegal by any court of competent jurisdiction, the same shall be deemed
severable from the remainder of this Agreement and such invalidity shall in no way affect,
impair, or invalidate any other provision contained herein if there is no substantive effect to the
services to be rendered to the County by such judicial finding of invalidity.

Section 25. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of

counterparts, each counterpart shall for all purposes be deemed to be an original, and all such
counterparts shall together constitute but one and the same Agreement.

-10 -



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed
as of the date and year first written above.

County of Orange, California

By:
Luster
Public Finance Manager
Approved as to Form
Nicholas S. Chrisos,
By:
Angelica Castillo
Deputy County Counsel
STRADLING YOCCA CARLSON
& RAUTH, A PROFESSIONAL
CORPORATION

Ro Whalen, Esq.

-11-



Shareholders
Associates
Paralegals

HOURLY FEE SCHEDULE

Hourly Rate

$500
$295
$130

-12-





